
Meeting of:  Communities, Regeneration and Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date: Wednesday, 19th July, 2017
Time: 6.15 pm.
Venue: Hollingworth - (Room 108B), Training and Conference 

Suite, First Floor, Number One Riverside, Smith 
Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence.

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.   

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting.

5.  MINUTES 3 - 8

To note the minutes of the meeting of the Communities, Regeneration 
and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 21st June 
2017.

6.  RBH PERFORMANCE REPORT 9 - 35

To scrutinise the year-end performance report of Rochdale 
Boroughwide Housing (RBH) for 2016/17 in relation to the 
achievement of the aspirations, commitments and promises set out in 
the Council’s formal tenant consultation (offer) document ‘Your Home, 

Public Document Pack



Your Choice’ for the housing stock transfer process.

7.  COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 
2017/18 

36 - 38

To review the Committee’s work programme.

Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Members
Councillor Neil Butterworth Councillor Susan Emmott
Councillor John Hartley Councillor Peter Malcolm
Councillor Shaun O'Neill Councillor Liam O'Rourke
Councillor Ann Stott JP Councillor Shah Wazir
Councillor June West Councillor Peter Winkler
Councillor Sameena Zaheer

For more information about this meeting, please contact 
Caroline Denyer, Governance and Committee Services Officer
Tel: 01706 924717
Email: caroline.denyer2@rochdale.gov.uk 

mailto:caroline.denyer2@rochdale.gov.uk


COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 21st June 2017

PRESENT:  Councillor Neil Butterworth (Chair); Councillors Susan Emmott, 
Hartley, Malcolm, O'Neill, O'Rourke, Stott, Wazir, West, Winkler and Zaheer

OFFICERS:  D Bowler (Assistant Director Place), M Robinson (Assistant 
Director Planning), S Miah and H Bellis (Neighbourhood Directorate) and 
C Denyer (Resources Directorate)  

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Inspector Riley (GMP) C Tostevin and D Kirkham 
(Rochdale Boroughwide Housing)

APOLOGIES
1 There were no apologies for absence.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
2 Further to the Council’s Code of Conduct, Councillor Wazir declared  a 
personal and prejudicial interest in respect of agenda item 9 (Directorate 
Plans 2016-17 Quarter 4 Performance Update - Economy Directorate) insofar 
as he was the Assistant to Cabinet Member for Regeneration. Councillor 
Wazir left the room during the consideration of this item of business.

URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS
3 The Chair indicated that the following additional items of business had 
been accepted onto the Agenda on the grounds of urgency:-

Review of Safety of Places of Worship and Communities following the recent 
terrorist attacks in London and Manchester 

Checks to Buildings Following the Grenfell Tower Fire

VARIATION OF ORDER OF BUSINESS
4 In accordance with the Council Procedure Rule 2.2 the Chair indicated 
that agenda items 6 - Discretionary Crisis Fund and Local Welfare Provision 
Year End Report 2016/17, 9 - Directorate Plans 2016-17 Quarter 4 
Performance Update - Economy Directorate and 8 – Directorate Plans 2016-
17 Quarter 4 Performance Update - Neighbourhoods Directorate - would be 
considered before agenda item 6 - Draft Communities, Regeneration and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2017/18 - 
and prior to all other business contained within the agenda thereafter.

MINUTES
5 DECIDED – That the Minutes of the meeting of the Communities, 
Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee held 
on 8th February 2017 be approved as a correct record.

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



REVIEW OF SAFETY OF PLACES OF WORSHIP AND COMMUNITIES 
FOLLOWING THE TERRORIST ATTACKS IN LONDON AND 
MANCHESTER
6 The Principal Community Cohesion and Equality Officer reported on a 
review of the safety of places of worship and of local communities following 
the terrorist attacks which had taken place in London and Manchester. 

The Committee was advised that since the attacks had taken place, the 
Neighbourhoods Directorate and Community Safety officers had worked 
closely with Greater Manchester Police (GMP), the Counter Terrorism Unit 
(CTU), Greater Manchester Fire & Rescue Service (GMFRS), the Home 
Office and neighbouring authorities to ensure that a review of safety and 
security procedures across public buildings and events had taken place and 
appropriate measures implemented to ensure that members of the public and 
staff continue to remain safe and businesses can continue as normal without 
disruption. 

Community Safety officers had regularly engaged with key stakeholders in 
faith communities to offer advice and reassurance and encourage the delivery 
of positive engagement events to promote solidarity with victims, unity and 
promote community cohesion. Communities had also been provided with 
useful contact details and encouraged to report suspicious activities to the 
relevant authorities as well as hate crime if they are an unfortunate victim or if 
they witness a hate crime taking place. 

Members were asked to note a number of key short, medium and long term 
actions which had taken place to ensure that places of worship and 
communities remained safe as well as addressing the fears and anxieties 
expressed following the recent attacks in London and Manchester.

In response to concerns raised in discussion regarding the role of social 
media in the proliferation of hate and race crime the Committee were informed 
that following a meeting of the Rochdale Council of Mosques, the Member of 
Parliament for Rochdale, the Mayor of Greater Manchester and the Assistant 
Chief Constable it had been agreed that the concerns would be taken further 
nationally.   

DECIDED – That the report be noted.

CHECKS TO BUILDINGS FOLLOWING THE GRENFELL TOWER FIRE
7 Clare Tostevin, the Director of Communities and Dave Kirkham, the 
Fire Safety lead at Rochdale Boroughwide Housing (RBH) provided an update 
on the safety of the seven residential tower blocks at College Bank in 
Rochdale.

The Committee was advised that no cladding existed on the residential tower 
blocks in Rochdale and that these were of a simple concrete construction with 
no gas supply to the buildings. All seven blocks at College Bank were repoted 
as having met all the current fire safety standards and each block had a full 
fire risk assessment in place. In addition, in the period 2016/2017 RBH had  

Page 4



invested in excess of £300,000 in a programme of fire safety upgrades at 
College Bank, including the fitting of emergency lighting, replacement bin 
hoppers and upgrades to a number of existing fire doors.

A review the fire risk assessments for College Bank was undertaken on an 
annual basis and following the recent investment, a full and rigorous fire risk 
assessment on each block at College Bank which had been brought forward 
following the unprecedented fire at Grenfell Tower in London. 

The evacuation procedures for the residential blocks had been reviewed in the 
light of the fire at Grenfell Tower and new information leaflets had been 
delivered to all the residents of the blocks explaining the ‘Stay Put’ policy 
meaning that only those in whose flat the fire occurs are required to evacuate 
their premises.

RBH had also delivered smoke detection and interlinked sprinkler suppression 
systems within the bin compounds to ensure a fire in this location cannot 
develop outside of that area and all blocks had also been provided with rising 
fire mains and all fire related facilities were serviced, maintained and tested in 
accordance with the requirements of the relevant legislation and the 
manufacturers recommendations. In addition to the legislative requirements 
the caretakers undertook twice daily inspections of all 7 blocks and where 
necessary removed any items of rubbish or unauthorised storage which have 
presented both a fire risk and safety risk.

A Service Level Agreement and Information Sharing Agreement with Greater 
Manchester Fire and Rescue Service for the delivery of Home Safety Checks 
to tenants were by appointment and had resulted in vulnerable tenants having 
received advice and reassurance.

The Assistant director of Place updated Members on a meeting organised by 
the Mayor of Greater Manchester to discuss the safety of high rise tower 
blocks across the city region. Councillor Emmott attended the meeting along 
with representatives from the Housing Providers across the region and Senior 
Council officers. 

During consideration of the report a query was raised with regard to owner 
occupied flats.  The Committee was advised that the fire safety upgrades had 
also been offered to owner occupiers where required. 

A query regarding the robustness of the procurement process was raised with 
regard to ensuring that the materials used when the building renovations took 
place were of the specified standard.  The Committee were advised that those 
blocks across GM that are clad were to be inspected and the cladding tested 
by GMFRS. The Assistant Director Place advised that a special GM Highrise 
Task Force was to be set up and that checks will continue to be carried out 
across Greater Manchester on all social landlord, private and student blocks 
of flats. The cladding used on school and college buildings was also to be 
checked.

Page 5



DECIDED – that the report be noted

DISCRETIONARY CRISIS FUND AND LOCAL WELFARE PROVISION 
YEAR END REPORT 2016/17
8 The Director of Neighbourhoods submitted a report which informed 
Members of the Discretionary Crisis Fund’s performance throughout 2016/17

The DCF offered support to vulnerable residents who are resettling in the 
Borough from temporary/institutional care that may need help in acquiring 
essential household items. The scheme is also a final ‘safety net’ to provide 
immediate and targeted relief for members of the local community who are in 
the greatest need and who do not have the means to resolve their own 
emergency situation.

The report included details of the grant funds contributions made to a number 
of Food Banks within the borough and also grant funding to a number of small 
community based projects

Members noted that a report was due to be submitted to Cabinet in 
September 2017 requesting further funding contributions to continue the 
current provision levels throughout 2018/19 and fund the scheme from 2019 
onwards as otherwise the provision will cease.

In considering the report the Chair referred to the informal meeting of the
Committee’s membership that was held immediately before this meeting of 
the Committee, where Members received a comprehensive presentation and 
overview of the Local Welfare Provision available in the Borough.

Members sought clarification of what steps had been taken to raise 
awareness of the scheme among the harder to reach sections of the 
Community and how this may be further improved.

DECIDED – That (1) the report be noted; and
         (2) the Council’s Discretionary Crisis Fund be supported. 

DIRECTORATE PLANS 2016-17 QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE UPDATE - 
ECONOMY DIRECTORATE
9 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Economy which 
advised of the progress at the end of Quarter 4 (1st April 2016 – 31st March 
2017) towards the achievement of the targets contained in the Economy 
Directorate Plan 2016-17.   
 
The Committee were informed that 87.50% (21 out of 24) of the actions 
included in the Directorate Plan 2016/17 achieved the required target with a 
further 12.50% (3 actions) not meeting the required target. The one red 
measure was the employment rate which had fallen during the year and 
although there had been a slight recovery at the end of the year it was still 
below the target set.  The two amber rated performance measures related to 
the town centre project which had experienced delays and the Long Street 

Page 6



Methodist School project, as part of the Townscape Heritage Initiative, in 
Middleton. 

Members noted that Rochdale Development Agency’s (RDA) performance 
was also included in the report where the RDA was delivering projects on 
behalf of the Council as with the Rochdale Market and Rochdale Riverside 
developments or had provided a service for the Council such as business 
growth support.

Members sought clarification on a number of issues that were raised in the 
report, including the progress of the project to relocate the market in Rochdale 
Town Centre and details of which sites across the Borough had been granted 
planning permission but were not currently being developed. The Assistant 
Director Planning undertook to circulate a list of development sites which have 
been granted planning permission to Members of the Committee by the end of 
June 2017. 

DECIDED – that (1) the report be noted;
        (2) the Director of Economy be requested to circulate an 

update on the progress of the project to relocate the market in Rochdale 
Town Centre to the Members of the Committee;

        (3) The Assistant Director Planning to be requested to 
circulate a list of development sites which have been granted planning 
permission to Members of the Committee by the end of June 2017.

DIRECTORATE PLANS 2016-17 QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE UPDATE - 
NEIGHBOURHOODS DIRECTORATE
10 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Neighbourhoods 
which advised of the progress at the end of Quarter 4 (1st April 2016 – 31st 
March 2017) towards achievement of the targets contained in the 
Neighbourhoods Directorate Plan 2016-17.   
 
The Committee were informed that 85.71% (24 out of 28) of the actions 
included in the Directorate Plan 2016/17 achieved the required target with a 
further 14.29% (4 actions) not meeting the required target. 

The three red actions related to the launching of the new place branding 
project and Rochdale, the Formulation of a 5-10 year Residential Growth 
Strategy for the borough which was linked to the Greater Manchester Place 
Initiative and the continued work with Rochdale Boroughwide Housing to 
deliver the promises made to tenants contained within the stock transfer 
agreement.  The one amber action related to the completion of the 
development of new communications strategies to improve external and 
internal.

The Chair requested that the Council’s performance management template be 
amended to ensure a consistent reporting procedure across the Directorates.

DECIDED – that (1) the report be noted;

Page 7



        (2) the Assistant Director Information, Customers and 
Communities be requested to review the Council’s performance 
management template to ensure a consistent reporting procedure.

DRAFT COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18
11 The Committee considered the first draft Communities, Regeneration 
and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 
2017/18 as a basis for development. Members were advised that 
amendments to the Work Programme would be made on an ongoing basis 
throughout the year to reflect current and forthcoming challenges to be faced 
by the Authority in general and this Committee in particular. The Committee 
was also advised that there was a responsibility to report the Work 
Programme to the Council for information purposes.

The Committee were advised that some issues could be scrutinised in 
conjunction with one or both of the other two Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees; in this regard Homelessness had been identified as a potential 
example of cross-committee working because this subject had implications 
that were relevant to the terms and references of all three of the Council’s 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees.  The Committee were advised that that 
the issue of homelessness and rough sleeping had been identified as an issue 
to be examined by a cross-committee task and finish group.

The Chair requested that suggestions for further topics for scrutiny by a task 
and finish group be notified to the clerk for consideration at a future meeting of 
the Committee.

In considering the report the Chair advised that the work programme may 
require alignment with that of Greater Manchester overview and scrutiny 
Committees once the details were confirmed.

DECIDED – That the Communities, Regeneration and Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2017/18 be noted.

GMCA/AGMA SCRUTINY POOL
12 DECIDED – That the Minutes of the meeting of the Joint 
GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool held on held on 13th January, 10th 
February, 10th March and 7th April 2017 be noted.

Page 8



Report to Communities, Regeneration and Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting 19th July 2017
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Housing & Environment
Report Author Caroline Abbott
Public/Private Document Public

RBH Performance Report

Executive Summary

1.1 The report provides Members with an update on the performance of Rochdale 
Boroughwide Housing (RBH) for 2016/17 in relation to the achievement of the 
aspirations, commitments and promises set out in the Council’s formal tenant 
consultation (offer) document ‘Your Home, Your Choice’ for the housing stock 
transfer process.

1.2 Promises are new initiatives or projects that RBH has said it will deliver; 
commitments are pre-transfer service levels that RBH will maintain; and 
aspirations are things that RBH would like to do, but are not guaranteed as 
there is no specific funding in its business plan and delivery may be adversely 
affected by issues such as the impact of the welfare reform.

1.3 The report also provides some additional key performance information and 
updates on the organisations development programme and how RBH is 
working in partnership with the Council, local agencies, other registered 
providers and the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) to deliver key 
strategic priorities.

1.4 The stock transfer agreement requires RBH to provide performance 
information to the Council for a 5 year period following the stock transfer from 
2012/13 up to 2016/16. 

1.5 This is the last year that the performance information in this report will be 
provided to Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. From 2017/18, RBH performance information will be 
included within the overall annual Registered Provider (RP) report.

Recommendation

2.1     Members are requested to note the performance of Rochdale Boroughwide 
Housing.

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



Reason for Recommendation

3.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on the 4th October 2012 
agreed a process for monitoring the Performance of RBH in relation to the 
aspirations, commitments and promises made to tenants by the Council in the 
formal stock transfer ‘offer’ document. The process involved regular report to 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee using the tables attached.

Key Points for Consideration

Background

4.1 The ‘offer’ document contained a total of 50 promises, 50 commitments and 20 
aspirations to be delivered by RBH over the 5 year period following the stock 
transfer.

4.2 This report is the final performance update required as part of the stock 
transfer agreement. RBH’s future performance will be monitoring in line with 
the other Registered Providers operating in the Borough and presented to 
Overview and Scrutiny at year end. The monitoring of RBH’s promises, 
commitments and aspirations will no longer be undertaken.

Promises

4.3 With regards to the 50 Promises, all have been completed and signed off by 
the relevant tenant-led RBH panel (Communities, Customer or Homes).

4.4 Progress in respect of the promises is provided in Appendix 1.

Commitments

4.5 Progress in respect of the 50 Commitments is provided in Appendix 2. Three 
have been completed and RBH are continuing to meet all of the remaining 47 
set out within the ‘offer’ document.

Aspirations

4.6 Appendix 3 shows the progress that RBH have made in respect of the 20 
Aspirations, 13 of which have been completed and signed off by RBH.

Performance
4.7 In addition to the submission of progress reports to Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee, officers from Strategic Housing services meet on a regular basis 
with representatives from RBH to monitor performance in respect of a range of 
issues including stock transfer obligations, governance, risks and Service 
Level Agreements.

Scheme Title Units HCA Grant
Longridge Drive (Phase 2 ) 26 £546,000

Queens Drive 11 £231,000

Page 10



 
4.8 RBH has obtained grant funding through the Affordable Homes Programme 

2015-18 to support the development of 5 new build housing schemes. These 
schemes will deliver a total of 79 homes for affordable rent.

4.9 The following schemes were completed during 2016/17:

4.10 RBH has sold 155 properties through Right to Buy or Right to Acquire in 
2016/17.

4.11 The Affordable Homes Programme Framework was launched in January 2011 
and introduced a new funding model based on affordable rents. Affordable 
rent is 80% of market rent and allows RPs to charge higher than social rent to 
increase their rental income. Since 2011, RBH has converted 566 properties 
to affordable rent, 104 of which were converted during 2016/17.

4.12 Since RBH launched its membership scheme in 2012/13 there has been a 
steady growth in the number of tenants and employees choosing to become 
members (co-owners of RBH). The position regarding tenant and employee 
members as at 31st March 2017 is detailed in the table below:

4.13 The targets within the current membership strategy are shown in the table 
above. A new membership strategy is being considered by the Representative 
Body in June.  The draft strategy proposes targets of: 40% of tenants and 90% 
of employees to be members by the end of year three (April 2020).

4.14 Reducing the number of empty homes has been one of the main operational 
challenges faced by RBH. There have been a  significant numbers of empty 
homes which are proving difficult to let due to low demand and as a result of 
the changes in welfare reform. However the numbers of empty homes has 
fallen from a peak of 555 in May 2014 to 237 properties as at 31st March 
2017.

4.15 Under the terms of a Housing Agency Agreement, which forms part of the 
Transfer Agreement, RBH manages the Common Housing Register (CHR) 
and Choice Based Lettings (CBL) system within the framework provided by 
the Council’s Allocations Policy. Eight housing associations are partners in the 
CHR and CBL schemes. Under this arrangement a close working relationship 
exists between RBH and the Council’s Strategic Housing Team. In 2016/17 
RBH allocated a total of 1,610 homes including 318 homes for the 8 housing 
association partners. 

Membership 
Type

Total Current Members 
as at 31/03/2017

Target Figures up 
to July 2015

Tenants 15,387 4,770 (31%) 25%
Employees 625 512 (82%) 80%
Total 5,282

Page 11



4.16 As part of the transfer agreement a protocol was agreed regarding how 
enquiries from Councillors would be dealt with and responded to. Member 
complaints and enquiries to RBH are processed and monitored by the 
organisations Customer Feedback Co-ordinator. The figures 2016/17 are 
shown in the table below. RBH aim to respond to Councillor enquiries within 
10 working days although on some occasions, due to the complexity of certain 
cases, this may not be possible.

4.17 The stock transfer agreement contains a VAT shelter arrangement which 
allows RBH to obtain the same VAT exemption as the Council on its capital 
works. This was achieved by the Council by entering into a development 
agreement with RBH which allows full recovery of any VAT incurred by RBH in 
carrying out the works. The current estimate (as at 31st March 20017) is that 
the Council will receive in total, £12,712,846.67 as a result of the VAT shelter 
arrangement. The Council received £1,044,060.00 in 2016/17 which equates 
to £11,941,235.00 in total since 2012. 

4.18 The stock transfer agreement requires RBH to continue to work with and 
support Turf Hill EMB and Hollin EMB. When the transfer agreement was 
established there was also Coverhall TMO that have since folded and the 
housing stock is now managed by RBH. 

Turf Hill Estate Management Board (EMB) - The EMB is operating 
effectively. The EMB has a seconded RBH officer who regularly meets with 
various teams within RBH including Neighbourhood Housing, Income, 
Environmental Improvement and Governance, This is to ensure work carried 
out in the neighbourhood of Turf Hill is delivered to a high standard and the 
seconded officer is delivery best practice, value for money services the 
tenants.

Hollin (EMB) – Hollin EMB no longer exists in that format. The interim 
management agreement was agreed for one year in 2012 which included a 
clause that reasonable endeavours be made to agree a new management 
agreement. Despite considerable efforts over a prolonged period of time from 
teams within RBH, members of the EMB did not come forward to renegotiate a 
new agreement, therefore since 31 March 2015, Hollin EMB has been 
recognised as a community organisation/TRA providing community benefit 
activities, not housing management functions. In order to ensure there was 
ongoing support for people on Hollin and for the TRA, RBH met with members 
of the committee to complete the community organisation/TRA liaison 
meeting. This means that the TRA now receives funding as a community 
organisation and additional funding is provided towards the cost of running 
Hollin EMB office.

4.19 In January 2017, work started on the multi-million pound redevelopment of the 
Strand in Kirkholt, which will deliver new homes, shops and a community 
space. The redevelopment is a partnership between the  Council and RBH, 

Type 2016/17
Councillor Enquires 346
Councillor Complaints 4

Page 12



which will provide a brand new parade of shops and a community hub with a 
range of facilities. Sixteen new apartments for affordable rent, delivered in 
partnership with the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA), will also be 
provided as part of the scheme. The Strand redevelopment is part of the wider 
RBH regeneration programme for Kirkholt, which includes new flats for older 
residents under construction on Daventry Road, and the recently-completed 
new homes on Queens Drive.

4.20 Details of the current Service Level Agreements between the Council and 
RBH are set out in Appendix 4.

4.21 Appendix 5 provides a progress update on the schemes included in the RBH 
Home and Environmental Improvement Programme 2016/17.

Achievements

4.21 Appendix 6 provides an update on the RBH’s achievements. 

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1   There are no specific financial implications relating to this monitoring report.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1    There are no specific risk or policy issues for Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to consider arising from this report.

Consultation

7.1 No Consultation required. Report for information only
.

Background Papers

There are no background papers associated with this report

For Further Information Contact: Caroline Abbott,01706 924015 , 
caroline.abbott@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 13



promises
Promise 

Number
Summary of Promise How measured Progress Lead Officer Target Date

Continuous 

Improvement 

Group

Planned sign 

off date

Flag 

(Green/Amber/ 

Red)

Date signed off by CIG
Link to CIG paper and 

approving minute

1 Work with the Council to provide an effective advice 

and guidance service for rehousing applicants.                                                                                                                                  

Review of existing services, monitor 

number of cases given housing options 

advice, lettings policy development - 

new housing options advice process for 

16-24 year olds, monitor number of 

mutual exchanges completed

Completed - Signed off by Customer Panel 01/03/16. Cath Owston 31/03/2013 Customer Panel Complete 01/03/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Customer 

Panel\Meetings\2015-

16\1.3.16

2 RBH would be able to invest more in improving 

services for older people.

Completed - Signed off byServices for All Panel 14/09/2016 Cath Owston 31/03/2017 Services for All 

Panel

14/09/2016 Complete 14/09/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Services for All 

Panel\Meetings\2016 - 

17\2016.09.14

3 Improved older peoples accommodation and new 

homes development.

Completed - Signed off by Services for All Panel 08/06/16. Peter Smith 31/03/2017 Services for All 

Panel

08/06/2016 Complete 08/06/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Services for All 

Panel\Meetings\2016 - 

17\2016.06.08

4 Establish new Mutual RBH within maximum of 15 

months of transfer.

Confirmation from regulator that rules 

approved

Completed - Signed off by Customer Panel 04/03/14. Gareth Swarbrick               26/06/2013 Customer Panel Complete 04/03/2014 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Customer 

Panel\Meetings\2013-

14\2014 03 04

5 Under new Mutual RBH, an elected group for the 

community, called the Representative Body, would 

be set up.  

Shadow Representative Body (SRB) 

elected; first meeting of SRB ; first 

meeting of Representative Body.

 Completed - Signed off by Customer Panel 03/06/14. Andy Wadsworth                                01/08/2013 Customer Panel Complete 03/06/2014 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Customer 

Panel\Meetings\2014-

15\2014 06 03

6 A complaints policy, involving review by tenants. Complete review of complaints policy 

undertaken by Tenant Scrutiny 

Commission; New Policy agreed by 

Board; policy & procedure implemented 

by March 2014. 

CP meeting 08.09.15 agreed 

performance measures to report back 

to CIG

Complaints, Compliments and 

Compliments Policy reviewed on an 

annual basis with dashboard of 

indicaors reported to CP and to Board 

with updates in newsletters to 

customers.

Completed - Signed off by Panel 03/05/16 Vicki Webb              30/05/2016 Customer Panel 03/05/2016 Complete 03/05/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Customer 

Panel\Meetings\2016-

17\2016.05.03

7 Annual review of service standards with tenants. The below service standards have now been signed off by relevant 

CIGs  

 

Grounds Maintenance by Communities Panel on 27 Nov 14    

Caretaking by Communities Panel on 7 Jan 14   

Empty Homes by Homes Panel on 11 Jan 16  

Responsive Repairs and Maintenance by Homes Panel 11 Jan 16 

 Anti Social Behaviour Service by Communities Panel on 15 Dec 

15. 

 Neighbourhoods Standard by Communities 22 March 2016                                                                                                                                                                                                           

The approved Service Standards have been published on the 

website. 

The Customer Experience Standard and Customer Charter are still 

under development.                                                                                                                                 

A schedule to review Service Standards was agreed with the 

Customer Panel at their meeting on October 4. 2016, to be 

completed by June 6, 2017

Elaine Johnson 31/03/2017 Customer Panel 06/06/2017 Complete

8 RBH would work with tenants to identify positive 

news stories about RBH tenants and communities.

Completed - Signed off by Customer Panel 02/08/16. Caroline Stewart  31/03/2017 Customer Panel 02/08/2016 Complete 02/08/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Customer 

Panel\Meetings\2016-

17\2016.08.02

P
age 14



Promise 

Number
Summary of Promise How measured Progress Lead Officer Target Date

Continuous 

Improvement 

Group

Planned sign 

off date

Flag 

(Green/Amber/ 

Red)

Date signed off by CIG
Link to CIG paper and 

approving minute

9 Improved community caretaking and cleaning 

services                  

% tenants satisfied with their 

neighbourhood as a place to live

% tenants satisfied with the overall 

appearance of their neighbourhood

% of responsive caretaking jobs 

completed within timescales

% of communal areas cleaned to a 

minimum 2 star standard

% tenants satisfied with the Community 

Caretaking service

Complete - signed off by Communities Panel 15/12/2016 Sarah Robinson 30/05/2014 Communities Panel 21/03/2017 Complete 15/12/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Communities 

Panel\Meetings\2015 - 

16\2016.12.15\Comm Panel 

Mins 15 12 16 SE.doc

10 A flexible approach to involvement  with a ‘menu’ of 

different types of activities and different time 

commitments including volunteering opportunities to 

support communities

% tenants satisfied with opportunities to 

participate

% tenants actively involved

Services changed as a result of 

resident involvement

06/05/2014 panel asked for more detail before signing off. Signed 

off by Customer Panel 09/02/2016

Andy Wadsworth 31/03/2016 Customer Panel Complete 09/02/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Customer 

Panel\Meetings\2015-

16\9.2.16

11 RBH to discuss with the Tenant Panel how it sees its 

role in the future and the lessons learned from work 

on Offer Document. 

Continuous Improvement Group 

framework established to facilitate 

service improvement activity and the 

overseeing of delivery of Consumer 

Standards and Offer Document 

promises.  Approach signed off by 

Customer Panel following consultation.

Completed - Signed off by Customer Panel 17/06/16. Andy Wadsworth 30/01/2014 Customer Panel 07/06/2016 Complete 07/06/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Customer 

Panel\Meetings\2016-

17\2016.06.07

12 Work with tenants to agree a new Neighbourhood 

Quality Standard (NQS).

% of estate walkabouts satisfied with 

delivery of grounds maintenance 

contract in line with service standards

% of communal areas cleaned to a 

minimum 2 * rating

Completed - Signed off by Communities Panel 22/03/2016 Sarah Robinson 31/03/2015 Communities Panel 22/03/2016 Complete 22/03/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Communities 

Panel\Meetings\2015 - 

16\22.3.16

13 Look at ways to respond faster to environmental 

issues and problem areas

% of responsive caretaking jobs 

undertaken within timescales

Completed - signed off by Communities Panel 21/03/2017 Sarah Robinson 30/09/2014 Communities Panel 21/03/2017 Complete 21/03/2017 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Communities 

Panel\Meetings\2016 - 

17\2017.03.21

14 Work more widely with Groundwork to tackle poorly 

maintained estate areas.

Identify potential development areas via 

the Neighbourhood Action Plan process 

Completed -  Signed off by Communities Panel  27/11/14 Sarah Robinson 27/11/2014 Communities Panel Complete 27/11/2014 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Communities 

Panel\Meetings\2014 - 

15\2014 11 27

15 Involvement of tenants in paid work and volunteering 

to be a central aim of RBH Employment Strategy.

Up to date Employment (work and 

skills) strategy with targets included for 

number of tenants in paid work and 

volunteering

Completed - signed off by the Custoemr Panel - 17/01/2017 Sarah Robinson 31/03/2013 Customer Panel 17/01/2017 Complete 17/01/2017 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Customer 

Panel\Meetings\2016-

17\2016.01.17\Customer Panel 

notes  17.1.17 draft.doc

16 Provide additional apprenticeships / 

traineeships/training for local people.

Percentage of tenants in paid work. 

Numbers of local people employed on 

RBH funded work.

Signed off by the Homes Panel 09/05/16 Clare Tostevin 31/03/2017 Homes Panel 09/05/2016 Complete 09/05/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Homes 

Panel\Meetings\2016 - 

2017\1    9.5.16

17 Commitment to separate out service charge costs 

from rents to increase accountability following 

consultation with tenants.

Service charges loaded into IBS from 

1/11/12

Completed - Signed off by Customer Panel 04/03/14. Ian Metcalfe                   31/03/2013 Customer Panel Complete 04/03/2014 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Customer 

Panel\Meetings\2013-

14\2014 03 04

18 Only introduce new services for which a charge is 

payable following consultation with affected tenants.

Completed - Signed off by Customer Panel 04/03/14. Ian Metcalfe                   31/03/2017 Customer Panel Complete 04/03/2014 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Customer 

Panel\Meetings\2013-

14\2014 03 04

P
age 15



Promise 

Number
Summary of Promise How measured Progress Lead Officer Target Date

Continuous 

Improvement 

Group

Planned sign 

off date

Flag 

(Green/Amber/ 

Red)

Date signed off by CIG
Link to CIG paper and 

approving minute

19 Improved Money Matters support.                                                   Project management. Completed - Signed off by Customer Panel 03/06/14. Angela Havens                         31/03/2013 Customer Panel Complete 03/06/2014 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Customer 

Panel\Meetings\2014-

15\2014 06 03

20 Further develop approach to tackling nuisance and 

ASB ensuring that it is dealt with effectively.

Quarterly reports to Chris Baldock Completed - signed off by Communities Panel 22/03/16 Clare Tostevin 31/03/2014 Communities Panel Complete 22/03/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Communities 

Panel\Meetings\2015 - 

16\22.3.16

21 New tenancy agreement introduced N/A Completed - Signed off by Customer Panel 04/03/14. Angela Havens                         31/03/2013 Customer Panel Complete 04/03/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Customer 

Panel\Meetings\2013-

14\2014 03 04

22 Invest in more advice, guidance and signposting for 

tenants from its Employment Adviser giving them 

help to access training or find work

Completed - Signed off by Customer Panel 02/08/16. Nicky Morris                   31/03/2014 Customer Panel 01/03/2016 Complete 02/08/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Customer 

Panel\Meetings\2016-

17\2016.08.02

23 Rent would continue to be protected and would move 

towards target rent in the same way as others who 

have transferred from the Council at the time of the 

stock transfer.

Complete.  Signed off Customer Panel 03/05/2016. Angela Havens               31/03/2017 Customer Panel Complete 03/05/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Customer 

Panel\Meetings\2016-

17\2016.05.03

24 Rent increases would still be subject to the 

Governments rent increase guidelines.

Complete.  Signed off Customer Panel 03/05/2016. Angela Havens               31/03/2017 Customer Panel Complete 03/05/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Customer 

Panel\Meetings\2016-

17\2016.05.03

25 RBH would guarantee that for 5 years following the 

transfer transferring tenants (excluding sheltered 

support services charge) annual rents would not 

increase by more than permitted under the current 

government policy .  This would include those who 

move home to amnother RBH property.

Complete.  Signed off Customer Panel 03/05/2016. Gareth Swarbrick               31/03/2017 Customer Panel Complete 03/05/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Customer 

Panel\Meetings\2016-

17\2016.05.03

26 Regularly review ways in which tenants are able to 

pay their rent by the most effective & efficient 

method.  Any changes to be introduced only after 

tenant consultation

Complete Signed off at Customer Panel on 09/02/16 Angela Havens                         31/03/2013, 

31/03/2015 & 

31/03/2017 

Customer Panel Complete 09/02/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Customer 

Panel\Meetings\2015-

16\9.2.16

P
age 16



Promise 

Number
Summary of Promise How measured Progress Lead Officer Target Date

Continuous 

Improvement 

Group

Planned sign 

off date

Flag 

(Green/Amber/ 

Red)

Date signed off by CIG
Link to CIG paper and 

approving minute

27 RBH will negotiate with the current contents 

insurance provider in order to ensure the service 

continues after stock transfer and tenants 

possessions remain covered.  When the contract 

comes up for renewal RBH will Involve tenants in 

choosing an insurance company as well as exploring 

different options for widening range of cover.

Completed - Signed off by Customer Panel 06/08/13 Angela Havens                         31/03/2013 Customer Panel Complete 06/08/2013 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Customer 

Panel\Meetings\2013-

14\2013 08 06

28 Develop the pre-tenancy programme which would be 

offered to new tenants 

Completed - Signed off by Customer Panel 03/06/14 Angela Havens                         31/03/2013 Customer Panel Complete 03/06/2014 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Customer 

Panel\Meetings\2014-

15\2014 06 03

29 RBH, in consultation with tenants will consider 

whether to continue to collect water charges as part 

of the rent, when the existing contract with United 

Utilities comes to an end in March 2015.

Project workbook to be set up and then 

monitored and reviewed monthly at 

RBH project Board. Cost benefit 

analysis to be completed. Customer 

Panel to review and tenant engagement 

activity.

Completed - Signed off by Customer Panel 17/06/16. Andy Wadsworth                               30/09/2014 Customer Panel Complete 17/06/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Customer 

Panel\Meetings\2016-

17\2016.06.07

30 Encourage older tenants to use IT. By monitoring the number of people 

living in independent living benefiting 

from the use of IT - either their own 

through RBH infastructure or through 

the continued use of RBH IT facilities 

within the communal spaces in the 

schemes

Completed - signed off by Services for All Panel 14/12/2016 Peter Smith 31/03/2015 Services for All Panel 14/12/2016 Complete 14/12/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Services for All 

Panel\Meetings\2016 - 

17\2016.12.14\S4A notes 

14.12.16.doc

31 Improved repairs response times:  Attend emergency 

(working hours) repairs within 2 hours and make safe 

in 12 hours for severe problems.  Attend within 24 

hours to avoid serious health & safety problems;  

Complete urgent repairs within 3 working days;  

Attend and complete routine repairs within 10 

working days

Response across all categories 

recorded as part of IT system and 

reported to Homes Panel, HoS and 

selected indicators to Board

 Signed off by the Homes Panel 06/01/2014 Vicki Webb Homes Panel 06/01/2014 Complete 06/01/2014 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Homes 

Panel\Meetings\2013 - 

2014\06 01 2014

32 Commitment to maintaining homes to the Decent 

Standard targeting additional investment in line with 

tenants' priorities. 

 Signed off by the Homes Panel 09/05/16 Clare Tostevin 31/03/2017 Homes Panel 09/05/2016 Complete 09/05/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Homes 

Panel\Meetings\2016 - 

2017\1    9.5.16

33 RBH would require its contractors to minimise 

disturbance and disruption from construction work.

Completed -Signed off by Homes Panel 12/05/14. Clare Tostevin  31/03/2013, 

31/03/2014

Homes Panel 12/05/2016 Complete 12/05/2014 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Homes 

Panel\Meetings\2014 - 

2015\12.5.14

34 RBH would clearly publicise the types of repairs that 

come under each priority.

Relevant information to be provided via 

Intranet

Completed - Signed off by Homes Panel 12/05/14. Clare Tostevin 31/03/2013 Homes Panel Complete 12/05/2014 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Homes 

Panel\Meetings\2014 - 

2015\12.5.14

35 Develop a panel of tenants to advise on the 

specification of materials to be used in contracts,

Materials and specification choices are 

taken to the Repair & Maintenance 

Panel meeting which will become the 

Homes Panel

Completed - Signed off by Homes Panel 06/01/14. Clare Tostevin 31/03/2013 Homes Panel Complete 06/01/2014 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Homes 

Panel\Meetings\2013 - 

2014\06 01 2014

36 Involve tenants as fully as possible in planning and 

implementation of work to their homes.

 Completed - Signed off by Homes Panel 12/05/14. Clare Tostevin 31/03/2017 Homes Panel Complete 12/05/2014 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Homes 

Panel\Meetings\2014 - 

2015\12.5.14

37 Put in place a programme of regular painting to 

external elements of homes.

Signed off by the Homes Panel 09/05/16 Clare Tostevin 31/03/2017 Homes Panel 09/05/2016 Complete 09/05/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Homes 

Panel\Meetings\2016 - 

2017\1    9.5.16

P
age 17



Promise 

Number
Summary of Promise How measured Progress Lead Officer Target Date

Continuous 

Improvement 

Group

Planned sign 

off date

Flag 

(Green/Amber/ 

Red)

Date signed off by CIG
Link to CIG paper and 

approving minute

38 Environmental work not carried out by the 'in-house' 

team will be carried out by approved competent 

contractors

The contractors selected are chosen 

from the RBH approved contractor list.

Completed - Signed off by Homes Panel 06/01/14.   Clare Tostevin 31/03/2013 Homes Panel Complete 06/01/2014 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Homes 

Panel\Meetings\2013 - 

2014\06 01 2014

39 Offer a repairs freephone number post transfer To form part of the development work 

undertaken with the relocation of the 

RBH Call Centre

Completed - Signed off by Homes Panel 06/01/14. Clare Tostevin 31/03/2013 Homes Panel Complete 06/01/2014 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Homes 

Panel\Meetings\2013 - 

2014\06 01 2014

40 RBH would be committed to ensuring that the repairs 

service received by tenants is prompt, efficient, 

courteous, provides value for money and 

compliments the planned maintenance programme

Included within the agreed Project Refit 

service specification

 Completed - Signed off by Homes Panel 12/05/14. Clare Tostevin 31/03/2013 Homes Panel Complete 12/05/2014 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Homes 

Panel\Meetings\2014 - 

2015\12.5.14

P
age 18



Promise 

Number
Summary of Promise How measured Progress Lead Officer Target Date

Continuous 

Improvement 

Group

Planned sign 

off date

Flag 

(Green/Amber/ 

Red)

Date signed off by CIG
Link to CIG paper and 

approving minute

41 RBH would make energy efficiency in homes a key 

priority.

Completed - signed off by the Homes Panel 09/05/16 Clare Tostevin 31/03/2017 Homes Panel 09/05/2016 Complete 09/05/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Homes 

Panel\Meetings\2016 - 

2017\1    9.5.16

42 Within first year after transfer carry out a new 

environmental audit of every estate.

Completed - Signed off by Communities Panel 21/06/16. Clare Tostevin 31/03/2015 Communities Panel 21/06/2016 Complete 21/06/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Communities 

Panel\Meetings\2015 - 

16\2016.6.21

43 RBH would help elderley and disabled tenants, 

particularly in relation to works in sheltered housing 

schemes.

Completed - Signed off byServices for All Panel 14/09/2016 Clare Tostevin 31/03/2017 Services for All 

Panel

14/09/2016 Complete 14/09/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Services for All 

Panel\Meetings\2016 - 

17\2016.09.14

44  Develop membership base.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       number and profile of members and 

their level of engagement   

Development and delivery of 

membership strategy with sign off by 

RB.  Quarterly reports to RB on 

membership and delivery of 

membership strategy including number 

and profile of all members and those 

engaging in activity  Budget established 

to resource member communications 

and activity  Invitation to and 

attanedance at AGM

Completed - Signed off by Customer Panel 02/09/14. Clare Tostevin             31/03/2014 Customer Panel Complete 02/09/2014 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Customer 

Panel\Meetings\2014-

15\2014 09 02

45 Develop Neighbourhood Action plans. Completed - signed off by Communities Panel 21/03/2017 Sarah Robinson 31/03/2015 Communities Panel 21/03/2017 Complete 21/03/2017 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Communities 

Panel\Meetings\2016 - 

17\2017.03.21

46 Set up a young persons membership scheme to get 

under 18's involved in the new mutual.

Completed - Signed off by Customer Panel 02/09/14. Clare Tostevin             31/03/2015 Customer Panel Complete 02/09/2014 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Customer 

Panel\Meetings\2014-

15\2014 09 02

47 Identify a specific membership budget to support 

involvement & volunteering activity

annual budget established to support 

membership information and activity

Completed - Signed off by Customer Panel 02/09/14. Clare Tostevin             31/03/2014 Customer Panel Complete 02/09/2014 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Customer 

Panel\Meetings\2014-

15\2014 09 02

48 Identify a specific community budget to support 

involvement & volunteering activity

annual budget established and projects 

delivered

Complete.  Signed off Communities Panel 20/09/2016 Clare Tostevin             31/03/2014 Communities Panel 26/09/2016 Complete 20/09/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Communities 

Panel\Meetings\2015 - 

16\2016.09.20

49 Work with tenants to identify the kind of rewards that 

tenant members would value.

Complete.  Signed off Customer Panel 03/05/2016. Clare Tostevin              31/03/2015 Customer Panel 03/05/2016 Complete 03/05/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Customer 

Panel\Meetings\2016-

17\2016.05.03

50 RBH to only consider offering a flexible tenancy in 

very special circumstances, agreed with its members.

Complete - signed off by Customer Panel - 01/11/2016 Clare Tostevin               31/03/2017 Customer Panel 01/11/2016 Complete 01/11/2016 R:\Continuous Improvement 

Groups\Customer 

Panel\Meetings\2016-

17\2016.11.01\Customer Panel 

notes  1.11.16.doc

P
age 19



Ref Commitment How measured Evidence/latest 

measure 

(including source)

Additional Notes Lead Date last 

updated

1 RBH will continue to be firm but fair in recovering rent 

arrears

Income and Rent Collection Policy. Income Collection 

procedures, clearly defined escalation processess. Customer 

Panel. Evicition Escalation process. 

Income and Rent 

Collection Policy

Specialist Rent and Payments Team in place with Rent 

collection procedures that advocate a fair but firm 

collection rate and early intervention and support. Rent 

collection Year end figure 102.27%.   The work of the 

Better Living Team has been split into Customer and 

Communities. The 2  Money Advisers have been added 

into the Rents and Pyaments Team  within Customer and 

2 Tenancy Support officers moved to the Neighbourhoods 

Team within Communities. The Money Advice officers 

provide specialist support on benefits, financial and debt 

advice.  Escalation policies are in place and being 

reviewed as part of the system improvement work with 

Wakefield and District Homes. The first two phases of this 

work have been completed the final phase looking at UC 

and FT Collection will be implemented by end of 2017.

Angela Havens Updated 

20/04/2017

2 Tenants in financial difficulty will continue to be offered a 

range of help and advice through the Money Matters team, 

including one to one support, financial statements, 

assistance with understanding debt, through access to 

affordable credit, affordable home insurance and access to 

good quality basic bank facilities and white goods and to 

explore  ways of giving them more disposable income as 

well as identifying other incentives eg utility bill vouchers or 

food bills and application to trust funds for people in 

particular hardship

FI Audit Action Plan. Advice Pro Case Management system. Management 

Reports from 

Advice Pro. 

Referral process 

and caseload 

monitoring.

The work of the  Better Living Team has now been 

mainstreamed into the Rent and Payments team. This 

team has 2 specialist advisors who provide individual 121 

support through a case management process for RBH in 

financial hardship or in need of additonal Tenancy 

Support. 

Our Money Advisors/Better Living Team have made a real 

difference to the lives of our most disadvantaged tenants 

obtaining financial gains exceeding £891,000 @ 16/17 

year end. 

Angela Havens No Amends 

20/04/2017

3 Tenants would still have a key role in providing formal 

scrutiny of RBH service delivery

Regular reporting of the activity of the TSC and CIGs through 

governance routes and to the wider tenant base

Scrutiny Panel 

ToR, minutes & 

reports

Two scrutiny exercises have been undertaken: Complaints 

and VFM. Referral for 2017/18 in development. Report to 

go to RBH Board recommending 2 scrutiny exercises per 

year.

Stephen Wigley 20/04/17 - No 

amends

4

Direct tenant involvement would continue after transfer % tenants actively involved Minutes of CIGs A range of direct involvement  opportunities including 

Continuous Improvement Groups are in place.  

Stephen Wigley 20/04/17 - No 

amends

5

Team of Tenant Liaison staff to continue to be on hand to 

provide advice and support for all tenants

Investment Programe schemes all included Development Officer 

and Tenant Liason Officer (TLO) support

this can be 

evidenced by the 

existing and new 

structure and also 

the contract 

documents - 

showing the 

requirements for a 

TLO for IP work.

Process developed and being implemented as part of 

Investment Programme delivery.

Clare Tostevin 20/04/17 - No 

amends

6

Continue to use its  in-house team to carry out some of the 

investment work.

Project Refit will significantly expend the in-house delivey of 

Investment Programme activity

this can be 

evidenced by the IP 

monitor sheet and 

the projects 

completed / 

ongoing with the in-

house team.

Commitment to in house team going forward as part of 

Facing the Future

Clare Tostevin 20/04/17 - No 

amends

7

Continue to recruit and employ apprentices and trainees.  

Clauses would be built into contracts that help to maximise 

the number of local people taken on to carry out the work.  

These requirements on contractors would be very closely 

monitored.

Work with local agencies and set as a requirement of the 

programme

During the last intake 68% of those interviewed and 70% 

of those offered an apprenticeship or traineeships resided 

within the borough.

Elaine Johnson 20/04/17 - No 

amends

8

RBH would look to continue current repairs reporting 

mechanisms

Repairs & Empty Homes performance reporting included within 

the agreed Project Refit service specification.  Performance 

reports taken to CMT, HoS and Board.

Feb 2016 new Responsive Repairs Policy agreed by Homes 

Panel and signed off by EMT for implementation April 2016.  

Reporting against Repairs indicators continues to be reported to 

HoS, Homes Panel, Board and in annual report

KPI reports to 

Board, CP, HoS

Channel Shift project to explore more interactive repairs 

reporting via on-line channels with customers able to 

select appointments that are convenient to them.  This wil 

be supported by continuing with existing repairs reporting 

mechanisms via the telephone.

Vicki Webb 18/04/2017 No 

amends

9

RBH would continue to be comitted to providing the best 

value for money it can on the services it provides.  In doing 

so it would seek to keep rents affordable and would be 

subject to the Government policy on rents and Tenant 

Services Authority Guidelines 

Self Assessments. Auditing. Affordable Rents Policy HCA Rent 

Standard SA, VFM 

Income and 

Support SA

See offer document promise numbers 23 and 24. 

Complete and signed off at Customer Panel on 

02.05.16

Angela Havens 20/04/17 - No 

amends

10

Tenants key rights protected in the new tenancy 

agreement:  Right of succession; Right to be consulted; 

Right to carry out repairs; Preserved Right to Buy; Right to 

improvements and compensation; Right to 

informationabout the management of tenants homes; Right 

to be consulted on changes to housing management 

matters and Right to sublet and take lodgers.

All tenancy agreements have been drafted and are in operational 

use.

Tenancy Policy and 

Tenancy policies.

Guide to tenancy types developed and rolled out cross 

organisation. Transferring Tenants Agreement issued and 

Project team established to ensure signed returns June 

2012. Complete and signed of at Customer Panel 

03.05.16

Angela Havens 20/04/17 - No 

amends

11

RBH would plan to continue to have four weeks during the 

year where tenants with a clear rent account are not 

obliged to make a payment.  RBH wish to encourage 

prompt payment and as such plan to continue to run a 

twice yearly prize draw to reward those tenants who have a 

clear rent account at the end of the Christmas/ New Year 

non rent weeks and again at the end of march/ beginning of 

April non rent weeks.

Rent Weeks set up every year. Rents and Service Charge Policy, 

Income and Rent collection Policy

Actual rent free 

weeks.

Rent free weeks 16/17 04/04/16, 19/12/16, 26/12/16, 

27/03/17. 

Angela Havens 20/04/17 - No 

amends

12

All current ways of paying rent would remain available to 

tenants: Direct Debit; Online; Rent swipe card; Telephone 

payments; Text payments; Telephone or internet banking; 

Post

Customer Panel CP minutes 

09.02.16

Complete Signed off at Customer Panel on 09.02.16. 

MOPs are continuously montitored and reviewed. 

Paperless DD's implemented April 2014, anyday direct 

debits facility in place. Payment Kiosk for tenants to make 

rent and other payments by cash or card now insitu at St 

Albans House, bar coding implemented on all rent letters 

making tenant able to make rent payments with out having 

their rent card. Online payment mechanisms in place and 

telephone payment facility available.

Angela Havens Updated 

20/04/2017

13

Tenants to continue to receive a rent statement every three 

months, in April,July, October and January

Rent Statements Rent Statement Reviewing customer portal which will enable customers to 

access rent statements on line. The target date for 

implementation is the end of 2017. Posting statements will 

be reviewed then. 

Angela Havens 20/04/17 - No 

amends

Commitments

C:\Users\AbbottCaroline\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\3Y75RII0\Offer document monitoring master (2)1Page 20



Commitments

14

After transfer tenants to continue to pay water charges as 

part of rent on a weekly basis and RBH to continue to 

operate existing protocol for use of legal action for 

collection of water charges as part of rent

Ongoing Water Charge 

Protocol, Rent 

charge Letters

New contract negotiated and agreed with UU from April 

2015.

Nickie Hallard 20/04/17 - No 

amends

15

Money Matters team to continue to work closely with 

housing management teams to ensure that any tenant in 

difficulty who agrees to actively work with the team to 

resolve their financial issues is helped to remain in their 

home.  

Better Living team now mainstreamed into Rent and Payments 

team. Advice Pro Case Management system allows tracking of 

outcome

 Referral Process, 

Advice Pro monthly 

reports, Case 

Studies

Specialist roles retained to support vulnerable tenants as 

part of the future service delivery within RBH. BL support 

Advisers - Communities. BL Financial Advisers remaining 

in Customer but managed via the Rent and Payments 

Coordinator.

Angela Havens 20/04/17 - No 

amends

16

Continue to work with tenants to help them to keep to the 

terms of their tenancy agreement

Enforcement of tenancy conditions where tenants neglect their 

homes

% of ASB cases resolved by early intervention of NHOs                   

6 week audit of Tenancy Sustainment Cases

Records of 

Welcome visits and 

sustainability visits.

Procedures already in place as part of sign up process, 

post tenancy visits and ongoing neighbourhood 

management. Tenancy Sustainment Team working within 

Neighbourhood Team. Proposed measures need 

developing in conjunction with Business Support.

Sarah Robinson 18/04/2017 No 

amends

17

Tenant Scrutiny Commission  to continue to meet regularly Publication of minutes of meetings Minutes & reports Tenant Scrutiny Commmission now defunct. Scrutiny 

function is now delivered via Members Scrutiny Panel

Stephen Wigley 20/04/17 - No 

amends

18

Tenants still able to contact Councillors to act on their 

behalf in relation to housing problems

Monitored. Apr 2015-March 

2016  294 enquiries 

received of which 5 

were complaints

MPs and Councillors mail monitoring reintroduced from 

1st Oct 2014.

Gareth Swarbrick 20/04/17 - No 

amends

19

Work with tenants and other partners to investigate 

potential sources of funding to upgrade play areas

Number of bids made  3              Number of successful bids made 

1

n/a £31,899 as part of SLA with RBC. Additional works not 

included in the SLA  £17,827. The future of play areas will 

be considered as part of FtF - Reviewing Our Assets.in 

2010  funding was secured to upgrade Melrose Play area 

on Falinge. In 2014 a joint bid for Back oth Moss Muga 

was unsuccessful.In 2015 a bid was unsuccessful for 

Greave play area. Currently researching funding sources 

for Greave in 2017

Sarah Robinson 18/04/2017 No 

amends

20

Continued approach of supporting the community in 

identified neighbourhoods through the Community Action 

Team, maintaining the drop in facilities at Kirkholt and 

Lower Falinge and supporting a range of community 

supported activities. 

Continuation of CAT supported activity in Kirkholt and Lower 

Falinge

n/a Facilities continue to be supported. Superseded by FtF, 

drop in facilities at Falinge are now closed, but offices 

remain open, with interview rooms available. Community 

base also remains open.  Kirkholt drop in remains open. 

TRAK is now closed, but will be replaced by the new 

community facility as part of the regeneration work.

Clare Tostevin 20/04/17 - No 

amends

21

Continue to support the three existing Tenant Management 

Organisations  and working with tenants and local 

communities who wish to explore new and diverse forms of 

local management and influence

Evidence of ongoing communication with EMBs and Cloverhall Notes of meetings 

held with Hollin and 

Turf Hill in 15-16.

Turf Hill EMB thriving.  Hollin EMB declined to enter new 

agreement and funding ceased 31st March 2015 (position 

clarified June 2016).  Cloverhall TAC management 

agreement ended Oct 2015.

Sarah Robinson 18/04/2017 No 

amends

22

Continue to monitor for quality on improvements and 

repairs using a range of methods

Existing post completion repair / project tenant evaluation 

methods continue to be deployed

STAR/Mobysoft 

text reports.  Also 

handovers and 

quality monitoring 

visits.

Improvements - Process developed and being 

implemented as part of Investment Programme delivery 

including handovers and quality monitoring visits.

Repairs - measured in annual STAR survey. Use of text 

messaging via Mobysoft and outbound calling.  

Clare 

Tostevin/Cath 

Owston

20/04/17 - No 

amends

23

Tenants would continue to be involved in the selection of 

any partners in relation to repairs and environmental works.  

Contractors must prove that they offer good value for 

money and have an excellent record of doing similar work.  

They would have to continue to follow the high standards of 

conduct in tenants homes, previously agreed by tenants 

and would be required to have specialist staff that would 

talk to tenants about the work.  RBH understands that local 

people have a stake in the way their neighbourhoods look, 

so it would try to recruit local people to work on 

programmes that improve the environment.

Formal partnering arrangements with Contractors not currently 

part of the Investment Programme delivery.  Contractor selection 

is via RBH select list, ensuring competant and quality supply 

chain is continued.  Where possible local contractors are used.

This can be 

evidenced by the IP 

monitor sheet and 

the projects 

completed / 

ongoing.

Process developed and being implemented as part of 

Investment Programme delivery

Clare Tostevin 20/04/17 - No 

amends

24

RBH would continue its successful environmental 

improvement programme in first 5 years following transfer 

(funded in part by utilising the commission gained from the 

agreement to collect water charges on behalf of United 

Utilities) setting standards in partnership with tenants, 

including  maintaining the tenants' environmental steering 

group. .

Investment Programe underway. Related policy and standards 

shaped by RAMP / Homes Panel CIG and ESG / Communities 

Panel CIG

This can be 

evidenced by the IP 

monitor sheet and 

the projects 

completed / 

ongoing.  Also, the 

ESG minutes.

Process developed and being implemented as part of 

Investment Programme delivery

Clare Tostevin 20/04/17 - No 

amends

25

Work already carried out with Groundwork Trust in 

employing young unemployed people on 'Green Team' 

would continue and amount of work undertaken eg small 

environmental projects overgrown gardens in void 

properties etc would be increased.

Recording of individual projects this can be 

evidenced by the 

projects completed 

/ ongoing.  Also, 

the ESG minutes.

Wendy Stewart 19/4/2017 No 

amends

26

Working with Safegard Security Solutions RBH would 

continue to commit resources into alarm provision, 

concierge and door entry systems, security lighting and 

CCTV schemes 

Monitored this can be 

evidenced by the IP 

monitor sheet and 

the projects 

completed / 

ongoing.  

6100 homes have alarms 31/03/16. Most door entry 

systems have been upgraded.  Installation of new alarms 

and 24 hour monitoring now ceased as part of FtF savings 

however existing alarms continue to be supported.

Wendy Stewart 21/04/2017

27

RBH would continue to support the Furniture Re-Use 

scheme 

Monthly monitoring reports NTM. Customer service satisfaction 

surveys

Monthly reports, 

Pass it On service 

improvement 

Business Case 

The Pass it On scheme has expanded into paint reuse 

offering good quality paint in addition to furniture  to 

tenants in need. The scheme has been developed to 

provide assistance to all new tenants in need of furniture 

and paint. EMT have approved the withdrawal of the 

Decorating Allowance in support of a Home Allowance 

Voucher. Expanding Paint re-use scheme by opening a 

paint facility in 2017.

Angela Havens Updated 

20/04/2017

28

RBH would continue to operate the Council's HomeChoice 

choice based lettings scheme in same way as present.  

Transfer policy would remain the same and initiatives to 

help council tenants move more easily around the Greater 

Manchester area would still be available to RBH tenants.  

Rights of exchange would also continue as at present.

Meetings with RBMC, membership of Pinpoint and homeswapper 

scheme

Housing Agency 

Agreement with 

RBC

The operation of the Council's HomeChoice CBL scheme 

is subject to a joint review with RBC and other RP 

partners. In the interim it has been agreed that we will 

continue to operate according to the existing Housing 

Agency Agreement. The review is seeking to establish the 

contractual basis under which the scheme will operate. 

RBC is reviewing its allocation policy, moving to a 

reasonable preference approach,  and has indicated that 

they will not require access to all of RBH lets. With 

agreement we are therefore developing our own 

Allocations and Transfer policy which will apply to all "non-

needs" (ie not Statutory obligations) applicants. It is 

anticpated that this policy will be approved during 2016-17 

however implementation is dependent on a decision on 

the future operation of the HomeChoice scheme. Still  

members of the Pinpoint scheme, support all applicants 

interested in pinpoint. Further promotion of mutual 

exchanges through Homeswapper, and enhanced support

Cath Owston 11/04/2017 No 

Amends

C:\Users\AbbottCaroline\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\3Y75RII0\Offer document monitoring master (2)2Page 21



Commitments

29

RBH would continue actions to deal with ASB and 

Community Safety

ASB Policy, established ways of working with Community Safety 

Team. Qrtyly case and outcome reviews, stats collated and 

reported on.

ASB Policy 

published

First stage refresher training of procedures including use 

of Risk Assessment Matrix undertaken on 4th and 11th 

May 2016. In depth refresher skills training carried out 

December 2016. Key partner with GMP and support 

agencies through multi partnership meetings. Member of 

ASBRAC (Anti Social Behaviour Risk Assessment 

Conference). RAG system used for new tenants to 

determine level of contact. 

Sarah Robinson 18/04/2017 No 

amends

30

Continue to play a lead role in the Council's 'Tackling 

Deprivation Together Strategy', 

Evidence of RBH input to developing strategy and actions Minutes - 

Transformational 

Leaders Group        

Minutes - Kirkholt 

Chief Exec attendance at Transformation Leaders Group.  

RBH contribution to Kirkholt joint working pilot.  Joint work 

to develop approach to Town Centre flats

Clare Tostevin 20/04/17 - No 

amends

31

Continue to build on development of its neighbourhood 

investment strategy

Number of areas action planned 52 Our Place action 

plans

New CIH neighbourhood action planning project fully 

underway. Accreditation from CIH received by RBH in 

May 17

Sarah Robinson 18/04/2017

32

Continued investment in provision of quality sheltered 

housing accommodation including a programme of 

improvements to individual flats and bungalows in 

sheltered schemes as well as to communal facilities 

including the most up to date assistive technology and 

personal contact systems which would ensure the safety of 

residents  whilst maintaining their independence.

Development in individual schemes, record of implementation of 

assistive technology.

Investment 

Programme

On going investment programme. NPVs have been 

redone and work is continuing to ascertain future viability 

in the light of changing patterns of demand and welfare 

reform (including Local Housing Allowance). The 

Community Response service continues to provide 

support to help people live independently and it is planned 

to expand this service provision in 2016-17. Assistive 

technology available to support independent living. 

Numerous small works also on going including installing 

digital modulators, electric doors and scooter stores

Cath Owston 11/04/17 No 

amends

33

Work of the Disability Working Party to continue At least 2 meetings held per year Minutes of 

meetings

Now the Services For All tenants group; which meets a 

minimum of four times per year.

Stephen Wigley 20/04/17 - No 

amends

34

RBH would continue to fund activities on its estates run by 

you and for you.  

Our Place action plans which identify activities which are then 

supported by RBH.

52 Our Place action 

plans. Evidence of 

grants made to 

community groups 

to deliver activities

Funding provided to neighbourhoods via Our Choice and 

Members Choice throughout the year.  New Member led 

approach to neighbourhoods together agreed

Clare Tostevin 20/04/17 - No 

amends

35

RBH would continue to develop its work to promote good 

citizenship amongst children and young people across the 

borough,

We no longer have resources to support the direct provision of 

activities for young people, with the exception of Prison Me No 

Way which will continue due to a successful bid for external 

funding. Funding provided via new community grants programme.

£24k funding 

secured - 8 PMNW 

sessions run in 

schools within  

RBH catchment 

areas.

Junior Warden schemes continue in neighbourhoods 

where they are run by community volunteers and are 

eligible for RBH community funding. Funding  available to 

community orgs to run citizenship activities for young 

people in our neighbourhoods. All other activities for 

young people, including Community Kids, have ended. 

Community Kidz is available as a resource package for 

primary schools to deliver in house through teachers and 

support staff. Young Voices  has ended and an agreement 

is in place with Youth Services to deliver any future 

consultation activities with young people through their 

network of youth groups. We continue to email young 

people who joined Young Voices to promote activities and 

events run by partner organisations. 

Sarah Robinson 18/04/2017

36

New tenants of the Council who hold introductory tenancies 

at the time of transfer would continue to serve the rest of 

their introductory period up to the completion of 12 months.  

After that, provided they have conducted their tenancy 

satisfactorily , they would be given the same full assured 

tenancy including the Preserved Right to Buy.

Implementation of policy & procedure Tenancy Policy Met. Stephen Wigley 20/04/17 - No 

amends

37

Those becoming new tenants of RBH after the transfer in 

most cases would be given an assured shorthold tenancy 

agreement for a probationery period of 12 months.  At the 

end of that period, provided the tenancy had been 

conducted satisfactorily, they would be given an assured 

tenancy agreement.

Implementation of policy & procedure Tenancy Policy Already in place. Stephen Wigley 20/04/17 - No 

amends

38

 RBH would seek to utilise all forms of contact with tenants 

in ways that suit them best

Use of STAR responses to 'how do you prefer to contact RBH?' STAR survey Most customers prefer to contact us by telephone. Already 

in place - see 46.

Vicki Webb 18/04/2017 no 

amends

39

Documents and publications would be made available in 

Braille, large print and audio, where appropriate, to those 

that require this.  Where appropriate RBH would provide 

sign interpreters and translated information to enable 

tenants to communicate with staff.

Service Standards to be developed and introduced in 

consultation with tenants

Documents & 

publications in 

large print, etc

Communications policies, procedures, working practices, 

etc.

Stephen Wigley 20/04/17 - No 

amends

40

RBH would contact any tenant falling into arrears and work 

with them to try to resolve their problems and agree an 

affordable way to clear their debt in a reasonable 

timescale.  RBH would aim to ensure that whenever 

possible  tenants can remain in their home and would only 

take court action to end a tenancy as a last resort when all 

other options have been explored  

Income and Rent  Collection and  Policy. Specialist Rent and 

Payments Team. 

Policy and 

Structure chart

Specialist Rent and Payments Team in place with Rent 

collection procedures that advocate a fair but firm 

collection rate and early intervention and suppor. 

Year end figures for 16/17 

• The year end collection rate for 16/17 is 102.27%  an 

increase of 1.55% on last year’s excellent performance. 

Excluding court costs, which have been transferred into 

the rent accounts to improve collection, the actual 

comparable coollection rate to 15 / 16 is 102.81% this is 

an increase of £295,000 .

• Garage collection rate has also improved on last year by 

0.30% or £1,300.

• £440,000 less has been transferred to Former Tenants’ 

Arrears compared with last year where the amount was 

£1,206,500. This is due to improvements in the arrears 

collection procedures and more focused work being 

undertaken during the 4 week notice period.

• Arrears as a percentage of the Gross Annual Debit 

stands at 3.58% whereas last year it was 4.57%.  This is a 

cash equivalent of £580,000.

Angela Havens Updated 

20/04/2017

41

RBH's front line employees would be available to talk to 

and advise all tenants  about what's expected of them in 

their tenancies and to support them in keeping their homes 

and neighbourhoods good places to live.

Completion of pre-tenancy assessments for new tenants and  

Sign up.  

Welcome Visit to new tenants

September - 

December 2016 

87% completion of 

Pre tenancy 

assessments at 

offer stage. 

Pre-tenancy assessments in place. HomeChoice survey 

completed after sign up to monitor and review 

performance/customer service

Angela Havens / 

Sarah Robinson

18/04/2017 no 

amends

42

RBH would monitor the effectiveness and value for money  

of its services and aim for continuous improvement via 

tenant and partner feedback, surveys, mystery shopping 

techniques and face to face opinion.

Updated VFM strategy (&action plan) that incorporates tenant 

and partner feedback, surveys, mystery shopping techniques and 

face to face opinion. 

VFM Strategy and 

Statement

Updated VFM Strategy on website plus self assesment. 

Introduced VFM challenge sessions involving tenant 

members.

Stephen Wigley 20/04/17 - No 

amends

43

Complaints would be dealt with within 10 working days and 

RBH would learn from them.  If any tenant is not satisfied 

once they have been dealt with under the complaints 

procedure they would have the right to take their complaint 

to the Independent Housing Ombudsman and would be 

able to contact a local Councillor or MP as they can at 

present.

Updated complaints policy that retains these commitments; 

monitoring of complaints KPI (ie dealt with in timescale)

Complaints policy

KPI reporting

Complaints PI reported monthly to EMT.  Monitoring of 

councillors' and MPs' correspondence introduced Sept 

2012.

Stephen Wigley 20/04/17 - No 

amends

C:\Users\AbbottCaroline\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\3Y75RII0\Offer document monitoring master (2)3Page 22



Commitments

44

Investment in disabled adaptations would be maintained Investment agreed as part of Offer Document maintained.  

Delivery continues to be provided in conjunction with RMBC via 

agreed Service Level agreement

This can be 

evidenced by the IP 

monitor sheet and 

the projects 

completed / 

ongoing.  Also, 

handovers issued 

by RBC.

Aids and Adaptations Policy being developed and is ready 

for consultation to commence. Extensive discussions 

already taken place between RBH and the Council on 

provision, assessment and installation

Clare Tostevin 20/04/17 - No 

amends

45

Help to reduce ASB and crime occurring by:                                                         

Using starter tenancies for new tenants for first 12 months 

of their tenancy;                                                                                                                

Referring vulnerable tenants to support services to help 

them establish and keep their tenancies;                                                        

Working closely with police and other agencies to reduce 

burglary and other crimes

Implementation of policy & procedure Published ASB 

policy, signed off 

by Communities 

Panel. Attendance 

at Joint Action 

Group meetings, 

Rochdale Safer 

Communites 

Partnership and 

Attendance at meetings with stakeholders including the 

police. Estate walkabouts and virtual team meetings all 

support inter team and partner workings.Welcome visits 

help to identify vulnerable customers who may need 

additional support or visits. Referrals to Tenancy 

Supportfor vulnerable tenants, then on to partner agencies 

where internal support is not sufficient.

Sarah Robinson 18/04/2017

46

RBH would make it as easy as possible for tenants to 

contact us

Contact Centre service standards in place and reported to CP 

and CMT

Service standards for CESA in development to be implemented 

in May 2016

STAR survey 

measures ease of 

contact

Progress against 

OMF programme 

reported to 

Programme Board 

and CP

Developing Customer Access Arrangements project 

ongoing and exploring how face to face services can be 

offered when Heywood and Middleton services are no 

longer provided by the Council.  Recommendations to 

report at the end of August 2016 to ensure a lead in to 

changes being implemented from the 1st October 2016.

New customer access arrangements in place from 

03.10.16.  All face to face contacts with customers to be 

via the customer service centre at St Albans House or via 

agile working by employees working in our 

neighbourhoods.  One call one number in the contact 

centre ensures that most telephone calls can be dealt with 

and completed at first point of contact.  Channel shift 

activity ongoing with work to further develop on line 

services via a new improved customer access portal.

Vicki Webb 18/04/2017 No 

amends

47

Empty homes would be relet as quickly as possible so that 

neighbours have to live alongside these properties for as 

short a time as possible.  The standard of all empty 

properties would be monitored closely so that they are 

suitable for occupation when ready to let

empty homes relet times already monitored as a KPI

EH service standards in place

New tenants satisfaction survey carried out post re-let

Empty Homes 

performance 

reported to HoS

EH service 

standard agreed 

March 2016 and to 

report back to 

Homes Panel on 

performance

Empty Homes reduced from 260 to 221 in 2016/17 and 

relet times down to 29.97 days the target was 30 days.  

New service standards in place to measure quality of 

home and new tenants are contacted with a new tenants 

survey and home visit to get feedback.  

Angela Havens Updated 

20/04/2017

48

Offer resettlement support to BME tenants via post tenancy 

visits where issues of harassment and nuisance

Implementation of policy & procedure ASB policy and procedures in place and being 

implemented.

Deborah 

Jamieson

18/04/2017 no 

amend

49

Work to promote sheltered accommodation to BME elders •By increased uptake of independent living tenancies by BME 

tenants

•By STAR survey feedback

•Info from over 55s 

letting event

•STAR survey 

Conversations have taken place with St Vincents to help 

us to understand how we can successfully tailor our 

service to meet the needs of BME customers.

Further work to be undertaken to understand the ethnic 

makeup of tenants in independent living schemes and 

their thoughts of the service as expressed via the STAR 

survey.

Incoming Service Co-ordinator (IL &EC) to develop 

actions for 16/17 Now being looked at as part of the 

Independant Living options appraisal to report to Board at 

the end of May 2017

Peter Smith 06/04/2017

50

Work closely together with the Council to invest in and 

support the regeneration priorities for the borough

Decisions made on options for key areas which evidence joint 

working between RBH and RMBC

Strand steering 

group minutes 

Town Centre Flats 

Steering Group 

minutes

Steering group in place for work at the Strand (joint 

between RBH and RBC)  Joint approach to wider 

regeneration in Kirkholt. 

Main contract started at Strand. 

Developing joint approach to Town Centre Flats challenge 

- focus for 2016/17.

Steering group and project board in place.

RBH bid to ERF enabling pot successful- £560k grant 

funding allocated. 

Clare Tostevin 20/04/17 

update by GW

C:\Users\AbbottCaroline\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\3Y75RII0\Offer document monitoring master (2)4Page 23



Ref Offer Document Aspiration Lead Progress Date last updated

1 Improved Repairs Service

Vicki Webb

New Responsive Repairs Policy developed and implemented in 

consultation with our customers and employees.  Homes Panel closely 

monitored the development process and involved from the scoping 

meeting onwards.

Service Standards developed, signed off and monitored by Homes 

Panel to demonstrate how the aspiration is being met.  Managing our 

Assets project in place to deliver £900k savings across property based 

services whilst looking to further improve the customer experience.

Commenced the HQN accreditation process in late 2016 to provide an 

external assessment of the Repairs service and ensure we are 

operating and assessed as delivering optimum levels of good practice 

and service delivery to our customers.  On site inspection will take 

place in June 2017

18/04/2017

2 Seek to supplement Council's refuse service to increase 

recycling opportunities including tenant consultation to develop 

solutions

Sarah Robinson Tenant consultation taking place in Falinge and Freehold, where there 

is dissatisfaction with recycling collection. Currently working with RBC to 

improve collection and reduce littering in these two neighbourhoods.

No amends 

20/04/2017

3 Build new homes to meet local housing need.  Focus for first 

five years following transfer would be on family homes and two 

bedroom bungalows built to 'Lifetime Homes' standards and like 

homes built by Brighter Horizons, would meet high standards of 

environmental sustainability to help tenants reduce their fuel bills.

Clare Tostevin Homes being developed in line with commitment to HCA .  Queens 

Drive and Longridge Drive completed this year.  Successful grant 

funding bid for 99 new homes under HCA SOAHP

No amends 

20/04/2017

4 Look toSet up a permanent facility for training as many of its 

tenants and young people as possible in order to equip 

them with the skills and aptitude to help gain employment.  

Facility also to be used to help employees develop skills to 

improve services.

Clare Tostevin Following evaluation of work and skills strategy strong recommendation 

was to develop work with other training providers in the borough rather 

than risk duplication by developing own facility.

09/05/2016

Aspirations

P
age 24



Aspirations
5 RBH would be keen to promote further its successful 'under 

occupation' scheme helping those who wish to move to a 

smaller property to save on heating costs and ensuring a family 

in need of a home can move into the released larger property

Cath Owston Extensive work carried out with those under-occupying to reduce 

numbers and advise on rehousing options.  Comprehensive data in 

place to identify current under-occupiers. Under-occupation housing 

options support now mainstreamed into HomeChoice team from 

October 2016.  Rent and Payment Advisors continue to offer support to 

tenants affected by Bedroom Tax to offer advice on moving. 

No amends 

11/04/2017

6 Look to develop a timebanking scheme that credits time 

volunteered with accreditation or rewards, eg access to discounts 

or services needed from other volunteers 

Clare Tostevin Resources during the year have been focussed on meeting OMF 

objectives and gaining better VFM for our community work, i.e. 

consolidating the community grants to develop a new, member-led 

scheme, developing the Member Offer and ensuring all community-

based activity now meets corporate objectives. However, as part of the 

new Member Offer, we will recognise those who have taken part in 

community volunteering.

09/05/2016

7 Look to Support to encourage volunteering, whether to help 

out projects in your local community or wider opportunities across 

the borough. 

Clare Tostevin All employees are encouraged to deliver 2 days' volunteering in work 

time. Volunteer co-ordinator communicates regular opportunities to all 

employees via email.

09/05/2016

8 Provide additional apprenticeships/ traineeships/ training for 

local people using investment from improvements and new build 

programme.  This would include placements via the contractors 

for new investments  and direct placements supported by RBH.   

(aim to provide two apprentice or trainee places for each £1M of 

investment in existing or new homes)

Clare Tostevin Physical investment in our existing and new homes continues to 

support apprenticeships at this level.

No amends 

20/04/2017

9 RBH would seek to reduce length of time people wait for 

disabled adaptations to be carried out.  

Clare Tostevin RBH and RBC carry out adaptations for customers, this can be 

evidenced by the handovers issued by RBC and the LA showers 

installed as part of the IP.

04/05/2016

10 Subject to funding employ own Occupational Therapist to 

facilitate quicker assessment times & make best use of 

adapted accommodation.  Providing an in house OT would 

trigger speedier assessments  and enable RBH to more 

accurately identify suitable housing options for those in need.  

Angela Havens RBH employed an OT that was managed by RBC. The funding for this 

post finished at end of March 2016. Improved partnership working with 

Adult Social Care and RBH  has resulted in improved pathways to 

access services being developed and implemented in April 2016. 

Following FtF this now sits with Peter Smith

18/04/2017 no 

amends

11 Look to Work closer with partner hsg providers to make best 

use of adapted properties including development of IT systems 

to match people with appropriate accommodation

Angela Havens Monthly Aids and Adaptations meeting are held with RBC and RBH. 

RBH Special needs Team has processes and procedures in place to 

ensure that we make the best use of RBH stock. Panel meetings are 

held with RBC to ensure a consistent approach. Following Facing the 

Future restructures this now sits with Peter Smith

18/04/2017 no 

amends

P
age 25



Aspirations
12 Maintain or increase 80% of local people currently working 

for contractors on planned maintenance schemes.  Clauses 

to be built into contracts  that help to maximise numbers of local 

people taken on to carry out work

Clare Tostevin As transfer promise 43 15/04/2016

13 Aware of need to Review effectiveness of street lighting on 

estates and seek to maximise resources to raise standard of 

provision by working with the Council

Clare Tostevin Oldham / Rochdale street lighting PFI has incorporated some of our 

neighborhoods street lighting, however RBH involvement has been 

minimal.

15/04/2016

14 Aim to Increase amount of work undertaken by ‘Green Team’ 

eg small environmental projects & tackling void gardens

Clare Tostevin As transfer promise 16 & 32 and also ongoing commitments 23 & 24. 15/04/2016

15 Look to Engage private landlords and their tenants in 

meeting RBH environmental standards

Clare Tostevin This is not something we have been able to successfully progress.  

Some early market testing of appetite to buy into RBH services was 

carried out in partnership with Rochdale Housing Initiative but 

insufficient interest was generated to develop further.

12/05/2016

16 As part of programme of new build deliver a new extra care 

scheme to provide new specialist homes for older people

Clare Tostevin Delivered

17 Seek to ensure that the grounds maintenance operation is 

improved and offers tenants a good quality service.  RBH 

would work closely with Council Environmental Management 

team to maximise opportunities for cost effective, value for 

money operations

Sarah Robinson Grounds Maintenance service is now delivered in house. Significant 

service improvements are planned in order to raise satisfaction. Further 

monitoring of the service has been agreed by the Communities Panel 

and the data collected will be reported back to the panel in 2017.

No amends 

20/04/2017

18 Support to encourage formation of new social or co-

operative enterprises for the benefit of local communities, 

including provision of advice and support such as assistance with 

business plans or help to secure funding. RBH would work in 

partnership with external agencies that promote social and co-

operative enterprise and would set aside a proportion of income 

from services provided to third parties for support for social 

enterprise 

Clare Tostevin As per promise 32 09/05/2016

19 Work towards increasing training provision, developing links 

with local employers & training providers plus directly delivering 

training to support tenants to develop the skills and experience 

they need to access work

Clare Tostevin As part of the Work and Skills Strategy, developed in 2015-16, there 

are objectives which will evidence meeting this aspiration. Partnership 

working with RBC Economic Development.

No amends 

20/04/2017

P
age 26



Aspirations
20  The new Mutual RBH would work with the Council to 

develop a CIRCLE model approach to older peoples health 

and well being.  

Clare Tostevin Delivered.  Circle model supported by RBH and established providing 

activities, volunteering opportunities and practical help 

P
age 27



SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN ROCHDALE COUNCIL AND                                     
ROCHDALE BOROUGHWIDE HOUSING

SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE COUNCIL TO RBH

SLA Title Service Provided Duration Expiry Date
People Management and 
Payroll Services

Advisory work in respect of Personnel (HR Issues)
Administration and processing of RBH’s payroll and 
pensions.

6 months 30th September 
2017

Aids and Adaptations Support 
Services

To carry out all major (over £1,000) and minor (under 
£1,000) adaptations on behalf of RBH

12 months 31st March 2018

SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE COUNCIL TO RBH – CEASED OPERATION 31ST MARCH 2017

SLA Title Service Provided Duration Expiry Date
Legal Services Legal work linked to RTB sales, Improvement Loans, 

transfer of mortgages, sale of repossessed properties, 
processing of deed queries contracts for building work, 
miscellaneous work.

12 months 31st March 2017

Customer Access Services
(Heywood and Middleton 
Only)

Face to face customer access, plus triage and support 
for channel shift. The service is currently delivered 
from the Customer Service Centres at Middleton and 
Heywood.

18 months 31st March 2017

Contact Centre – Out of Hours Out of hours telephone service provided to RBH by 
RBC Contact Centre

12 months 31st March 2017

SERVICES PROVIDED BY RBH TO THE COUNCIL

SLA Title Service Provided Duration Expiry Date
Mortgage Portfolio Management of Council’s Mortgage Portfolio Ongoing – 

reviewed annually
31st March 2018

P
age 28

https://www.google.co.uk/search?q=ROCHDALE+COUNCIL+LOGO&safe=strict&rls=com.microsoft:en-GB:IE-Address&source=lnms&tbm=isch&sa=X&ved=0ahUKEwjOqNSUxNPTAhWsCsAKHUfXB7EQ_AUICigB&biw=1920&bih=1024


N
e
ig

h
b

o
rh

o
o

d

S
ta

rt
 D

a
te

 C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
p
e
ri
o
d
 

(w
e
e
k
s
) 

C
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 D

a
te

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

C
o
m

p
le

te

pm-16-17-02b
Broadfield

Externals
31/05/2016 20 18/10/2016 100%

see pm-16-17-02b
Bury Street Estate

Externals

see pm-16-17-02b
Bury Street Smi

Externals

see pm-16-17-02b
Hardfield Street

Externals

see pm-16-17-02b
Heady Hill Estate

Externals

see pm-16-17-02b
Heap Bridge

Externals

see pm-16-17-02b
Heywood Central

Externals

see pm-16-17-02b
Hopwood Estate

Externals

pm-16-17-03
Back O Th Moss

Windows & Doors
01/04/2016 52 31/03/2017 95%

see pm-16-17-03
Arnold Bagnall Court

Windows & Doors

see pm-16-17-03
Brookside

Windows & Doors

see pm-16-17-03
Norman Weall Court

Windows & Doors

see pm-16-17-03
Threlkeld

Windows & Doors

see pm-16-17-03
Birch Road Estate

Windows & Doors

see pm-16-17-03
Hollingworth Lake

Windows & Doors

see pm-16-17-03
Littleborough Smi

Windows & Doors

see pm-16-17-03
Smithybridge

Windows & Doors

see pm-16-17-03
Thistleyfield

Windows & Doors

see pm-16-17-03
Wardle

Windows & Doors

pm-16-17-04
Wardleworth

Windows & Doors
04/07/2016 38 27/03/2017 100%

see pm-16-17-04
Clarkes Lane

Windows & Doors

see pm-16-17-04
Falinge Hill Estate

Windows & Doors

see pm-16-17-04
Falinge Hill Smi

Windows & Doors

2016/2017 HOME IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME - POSITION AS AT MARCH 2017

Please note that this is only an indicative programme.  All the schemes listed require a full survey to establish actual work 

requirements and properties to be included. 

Page 29



see pm-16-17-04
Mansfield Road

Windows & Doors

see pm-16-17-04
Mountside View 

Windows & Doors

see pm-16-17-04 Cutgate Windows & Doors

see pm-16-17-04
Sparth & Spotland, Spotrland 

Bridge & smi
Windows & Doors

see pm-16-17-04 Spotland & smi Windows & Doors

pm-16-17-05
Arnold Bagnall Court

kitchens & 

Bathrooms 18/04/2016 42 06/02/2017 95%

see pm-16-17-05
Norman Weall Court

kitchens & 

Bathrooms

see pm-16-17-05
Threlkeld

kitchens & 

Bathrooms

see pm-16-17-05
Birch Road Estate

kitchens & 

Bathrooms

see pm-16-17-05
Birch View

kitchens & 

Bathrooms

see pm-16-17-05
Firgrove Estate

kitchens & 

Bathrooms

see pm-16-17-05
Holt Estate

kitchens & 

Bathrooms

see pm-16-17-05
St Anns

kitchens & 

Bathrooms

see pm-16-17-05
Wardle

kitchens & 

Bathrooms

pm-16-17-06
Bellshill

kitchens & 

Bathrooms 18/04/2016 42 06/02/2017 100%

see pm-16-17-06
Bishop Street

kitchens & 

Bathrooms

see pm-16-17-06
Mayfield Estate

kitchens & 

Bathrooms

see pm-16-17-06
Mayfield Smi

kitchens & 

Bathrooms

see pm-16-17-06
Meadway

kitchens & 

Bathrooms

see pm-16-17-06
Pennine View Estate

kitchens & 

Bathrooms

see pm-16-17-06
Pennine View Smi

kitchens & 

Bathrooms

see pm-16-17-06
Wardleworth

kitchens & 

Bathrooms

pm-16-17-07
Clarkes Lane

kitchens & 

Bathrooms 18/04/2016 42 06/02/2017 100%

see pm-16-17-07
Falinge Hill Estate

kitchens & 

Bathrooms

see pm-16-17-07
Falinge Hill Smi

kitchens & 

Bathrooms

pm-16-17-08
Various Estates - All areas 

Boilers & 

Distribution 05/09/2016 30 03/04/2017 95%

pm-16-17-10
Various Estates - All areas

Electrical
11/07/2016 41 24/04/2017 100%

pm-16-17-11
Lonsdale

M&E
11/07/2016 28 23/01/2017 100%

pm-16-17-12
Norman Weall Court

M&E
26/09/2016 24 13/03/2017 95%

pm-16-17-13
Threlkeld

M&E
05/07/2016 25 27/12/2016 100%

pm-16-17-14
Mountside View 

Mechanical 
30/08/2016 16 20/12/2016 100%

see pm-16-17-14
Mountside View 

kitchens & 

Bathrooms

pm-16-17-15
communal entrance doors

communal
09/05/2016 19 19/09/2016 100%

pm-16-17-16 Olive Standring / Barnett Court 

/ Saxon 

lift upgrade

25/04/2016 21 19/09/2016 100%

Page 30



pm-16-17-17

Various Properties

Brickwork Pointing 

programme
01/08/2016 15 14/11/2016 100%

pm-16-17-19
Joy St 

canopies
19/01/2017 3 09/02/2017 100%

pm-16-17-20
various walkways

walkways
13/02/2017 5 20/03/2017 100%

pm-16-17-22
Yew Court 

mechanical
03/01/2017 12 28/03/2017 100%

pm-16-17-23
Arnold Bagnall Court

mechanical
03/01/2017 12 28/03/2017 100%

pm-16-17-25
8 & 10 Daniel Fold

conversion
16/01/2017 10 27/03/2017 95%

pm-16-17-26
10 & 12 Drake Road

conversion
23/01/2017 8 20/03/2017 95%

pm-16-17-27
Auto doors at Hare Hill

doors
16/01/2017 4 13/02/2017 100%

pm-16-17-28
Various 

Bathrooms
28/11/2016 16 20/03/2017 95%

pm-16-17-29
Langley House

roofing
23/01/2017 10 03/04/2017 95%

pm-16-17-30

Cloverhall Housing Conversion

Conversion

16/01/2017 10 27/03/2017 95%

pm-15-16-02

College Bank (7 blocks)

Communal 

Electrical & 

Decoration 25/04/2016 8 20/06/2016 100%

pm-15-16-04 Castleton North smi Externals
30/05/2016 18 03/10/2016 100%

see pm-15-16-04 Kirklee & smi Externals & Painting

see pm-15-16-04 Longhill & smi Externals

see pm-15-16-04
Wren Green Bungalows

Externals

pm-15-16-05 Stoneyvale Court
Externals Internal 

painting
11/04/2016 3 02/05/2016 100%

see pm-15-16-05 Stoneyvale Court Windows & Doors

see pm-15-16-05
Stoneyvale Court painting 

pm-15-16-06 Alkrington & smi Externals
18/04/2016 15 01/08/2016 100%

see pm-15-16-06
Tennyson & Shelly Ave - 

Boarshaw 
Chimney & pointing

see pm-15-16-06 Sherbourne Road - Hollin Chimney & pointing

pm-15-16-08 Mansfield Road Externals
04/04/2016 14 11/07/2016 100%

see pm-15-16-08 Greave 
Externals - AIB 

soffits

pm-15-16-19b
Various Estates - All areas 

Boilers & 

Distribution 20/04/2015 101 27/03/2017 100%

pm-15-16-21
Great Howarth

Communal Mech & 

Elec 16/05/2016 25 07/11/2016 100%

pm-15-16-22
Freehold 

Louvre windows
01/04/2016 4 29/04/2016 100%

pm-15-16-23
Moss Row

Communal 

Mechanical 02/05/2016 29 21/11/2016 100%

see pm-15-15-23
Moss Row

Windows & Doors

see pm-15-15-23
Moss Row

painting 

see pm-15-15-23
Moss Row

kitchens & 

Bathrooms

pm-15-16-36 Communal Area Lighting communal lighting
06/12/2016 12 28/02/2017 100%

pm-15-16-37 Chisholm Lifts
04/07/2016 20 25/11/2016 100%

pm-15-16-38 Tonge Court Lifts
22/09/2016 12 15/12/2016 100%Page 31



pm-15-16-40 Falinge Mews
Lifts 05/01/2016 4 02/02/2016 100%

pm-15-16-55

Lower Falinge (Hinton - 

Edington - Bromfield - Thetford 

& also Quinton, Stavordale, 

Romsey, Pershore, 

Glastonbury, Dunstable, 

Atherstone)

Windows & Doors 04/04/2016 42 23/01/2017 100%

pm-15-16-58

Lower Falinge (Hinton - 

Edington - Bromfield - Thetford 

& also Quinton, Stavordale, 

Romsey, Pershore, 

Glastonbury, Dunstable, 

Atherstone)

communal lighting 30/08/2016 26 28/02/2017 100%

pm-15-16-61 Saxon House
Mechanical & 

Electrical 06/06/2016 26 16/12/2016 100%

pm-15-16-62 Mop up
Mop up 15/02/2016 30 12/09/2016 100%

pm-15-16-20
Various Estates - All areas

Electrical
17/08/2015 58 26/09/2016 100%

misc-15-16-09 Freehold 
Structural - stair 

rails & ramps
04/04/2016 5 09/05/2016 100%

misc-15-16-21 Various Disrepair Works Dis-repair
07/03/2016 30 12/01/2017 100%

misc-15-16-23  lower falinge stairways stairways
28/11/2016 13 27/02/2017 100%

misc-15-16-25 Cyclical Various Cyclical
01/04/2015 52 30/03/2016 100%

misc-16-17-01 40 Halliwell Street - garden wall Structural

12/10/2016 3 24/10/2016 100%

misc-16-17-07 1 Barnes Meadow Structural 
17/10/2016 5 21/11/2016 100%

misc-16-17-08 48 Hope Street (1 Kershaw St) Structural 
17/10/2016 8 12/12/2016 100%

misc-16-17-09  34-44 mount street 
Concrete repair 

required
16/01/2017 1 23/01/2017 100%

misc-16-17-13 1 chapel walk roof at shop
03/02/2017 1 10/02/2017 100%

misc-16-17-16 Lonsdale and Threlkheld Scooter stores
06/03/2017 4 03/04/2017 950%

ptg-16-17-01
Arnold Bagnall Court

painting 
11/04/2016 3 02/05/2016 100%

see pm-16-17-12
Norman Weall Court

painting 

see pm-16-17-13
Threlkeld

painting 

see ptg-16-17-01
Derrick Walker Court

painting 
11/04/2016 3 02/05/2016 100%

see pm-16-17-14
Mountside View 

painting 

ptg-16-17-02
Chesham

painting 
08/08/2016 20 26/12/2016 100%

see ptg-16-17-02
The Cray Estate

painting 

see ptg-16-17-02
The Cray Smi

painting Page 32



see ptg-16-17-02
Wardle

painting 

see ptg-16-17-02
Wardleworth

painting 

see ptg-16-17-02
Cutgate Estate

painting 

see 16-17-01
Angel Meadows

painting 
25/07/2016 3 15/08/2016 100%

ptg-15-16-05

Lower Falinge (Hinton - 

Edington - Bromfield - Thetford 

& also Quinton, Stavordale, 

Romsey, Pershore, 

Glastonbury, Dunstable, 

Atherstone)

painting 

04/04/2016 51 27/03/2017 95%

ptg-15-16-02
Kirkholt Balderstone

painting 
20/04/2015 72 05/09/2016 100%

see ptg-15-16-02
Kirkholt Central

painting 

see ptg-15-16-02
Kirkholt Hartley Lane

painting 

see ptg-15-16-02
Kirkholt Rhodes Crescent

painting 

see ptg-15-16-02 Rathbone St painting 

Total for Painting 2014- 2015

\

env-15-16-01a Kirkholt (phase 3b) Fencing
04/04/2016 20 22/08/2016 100%

env-15-16-02 Cheapside Fencing
01/08/2016 10 10/10/2016 100%

Page 33



 

 

 

 

ACHIEVEMENTS 
 March 2017 marked five years since RBH transferred from Rochdale Council and we are 

marking this milestone by looking back at the promises jointly made by RBH and the Council 

in the offer document. More information is available at www.rbh.org.uk/fiveyears 

 

 Our investment in existing homes was top of the list for tenants at the time of transfer. Since 

2012 we have invested in our homes across the borough and delivered over 5,500 double 

glazed window installations, over 7,000 new secure quality doors as well as improvements to 

roofs, central heating, electrics and the local environment. 

 

 We were awarded £518,000 in March 2017 from the Government’s “estate regeneration fund” 

to help us to develop options to improve our College Bank and Lower Falinge 

neighbourhoods. Rochdale Borough Council were also successful in their bid for £45,000 from 

the same fund. We are continuing to work with residents, the council, GMCA  and other 

partners to develop options, and we have so far held an extensive consultation including three 

sets of community workshops. 

 

 2016-17 was the first year of the introduction of the 1% rent reduction and the first year of our 

response to that – the Facing the Future Programme - which has identified ongoing savings of 

£6m from April 2018 now embedded in our business plan. In achieving the £6m savings to 

ensure our ongoing viability; by renegotiating our finance; and by bidding for and securing 

HCA grant to expand our new build offering into Rent to Buy and Shared Ownership; we have 

not let the 1% rent reduction limit our ambition to be a local anchor institution and to build on 

the economy of Rochdale. 

 

 March 2017 saw the introduction of the “browsealoud” digital inclusion software to help our 

customers access our website. The software offers a range of reading and translation support 

which will make our website much more accessible for those with reading difficulties or those 

for whom English is a second language. This year will see the implementation of our new 

Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system which will enable us to provide more 

responsive customer services based on improved knowledge and customer profiling. 

 

 In partnership with Rochdale Council, work on the redevelopment of the Strand in Kirkholt 

started in January 2017. This will deliver sixteen new apartments, a new parade of shops and 

a community hub with a range of facilities. 

 

 We were allocated a Government grant of £3.382m in January 2017 which will support the 

delivery of a further 99 new affordable homes across the Borough – 60 “rent to buy” homes in 

Smallbridge and Lower Falinge and 39 shared ownership homes in Middleton and Pennines. 

These 99 homes will take the number of new affordable mutual homes built by RBH to 278. 

Since becoming a mutual housing society in 2013, RBH have completed 133 new homes for 

rent across the borough, with a further 46 ready to start or under construction. 

Page 34

http://www.rbh.org.uk/fiveyears
https://www.google.co.uk/search?q=ROCHDALE+COUNCIL+LOGO&safe=strict&rls=com.microsoft:en-GB:IE-Address&source=lnms&tbm=isch&sa=X&ved=0ahUKEwjOqNSUxNPTAhWsCsAKHUfXB7EQ_AUICigB&biw=1920&bih=1024


 

 In autumn 2016 we welcomed tenants into our 26 new homes at Longridge Drive in Heywood 

and our 11 new homes on Queens Drive in Kirkholt.  Our new homes for older people at 

Daventry Road in Kirkholt are just starting to welcome their first residents  

 

 Work to Olive Standring House, which was evacuated during the 2015 Boxing Day floods, was 

completed in summer 2016 with tenants able to return to their homes. Additional flood 

protection work was completed in spring 2017 with support from the Government and 

Rochdale Council. 

 

 RBH and Rochdale Council (RBC) continued to work together to review an alternative way of 

delivering the lettings service considering the housing demand  and impact of welfare reform. 

We signed an interim Housing Agency Agreement whilst developing the future state of how we 

allocate our homes and manage the Council’s statutory duty as well as providing a service to 

other registered providers from April 2018. We have managed the impact of the bedroom tax 

by supporting tenants under occupying to move into smaller more suitable accommodation 

and have implemented a “Let’s Share” pilot trialling shared accommodation for under 35’s. 

 

 We collaborated with Wakefield District Homes to implement changes to make our rent 

collection systems and processes more efficient in time for when Rochdale moves to full 

service Universal Credit in February 2018. Our rent collection performance overall in 2016-17 

has continued to be strong at 102.3%. 

 

 We have seen a continuing reduction in the number of empty homes and a reduction in the 

time taken to relet homes.  

 

 Following a member vote, we nominated Rochdale & District Mind as our new member charity 

in September 2016. We are building our partnership with them to include fundraising and a 

range of wider community work and activities. 

 

 Following a court hearing in February on water charges, we were delighted that the resulting 

judgement was in our favour and confirmed that RBH is not a water reseller. This provided 

welcome clarity for RBH, our customers and for the wider housing sector. 

 

 In July 2016 we were delighted to be named in seventh place in the prestigious 24Housing top 

50 social landlords list, and in June our ground-breaking RBH Extra Care scheme, Hare Hill in 

Littleborough, picked up the overall prize at the Rochdale Borough Design Awards, with Q 

Gardens in Kirkholt picking up the community commendation award. 

Page 35



COMMUNITIES, REGENERATION AND ENVIRONMENT 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Draft Work Programme 2017/2018 

Introduction

The Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee was established by the Council at the meeting held on 19th May 2015, 
the principal role of the Committee being to bring together both the physical and 
skills aspects of economic regeneration, and the supporting work of services such as 
leisure, highways, housing and environmental services etc, that provide the 
opportunities for work and the improvement of life experiences for the Borough’s 
communities.

Areas of focus for the Committee include the scrutiny of partners or key contractors 
relevant to the remit of the Committee.

The work programme for the Committee is drawn up through consideration of the 
statutory roles of the Committee, including the ‘call-in’ or review of executive 
decisions made, budget and policy consultation, and review of service delivery, with 
scheduling reflecting the anticipated consideration of business to deliver these 
functions.  The Committee has options for developing its own agenda and can 
request further business to come forward.

In brief, these are to hold the executive to account and to maintain an oversight of 
the delivery of Council services.  This is undertaken principally through the following 
means:-

 
 Scrutiny of Executive Decisions through the ‘Call-in’ process;
 The consideration of Budget and Policy Framework proposals for 

consultative purposes;
 The consideration of a range of performance monitoring/management 

data;
 The specific consideration of individual service issues as may be specified 

by the Committee. 

The Committee’s Work Programme is prepared on the basis of known items at this
time.  Scheduling of some business remains to be determined and this is reflected in
the Work programme.  The following table highlights issues where there is either an
agreement or an anticipation that specific items may come forward.  Other issues will
be brought forward as indicated above.    

Page 36

Agenda Item 7



21st June 2017

19th July 2017

Work Programme Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Performance Monitoring  – Rochdale Safer 
Communities Partnership 

Performance management and 
monitoring

Rochdale Boroughwide Housing Final Performance monitoring at the 
end of the 5 year transfer period

Renewable Energy Scrutiny Study Group Update for information

20th September 2017

Work Programme 2017/2018 Update 
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Performance Monitoring  – Rochdale Safer 
Communities Partnership 

Performance management and 
monitoring

Performance Monitoring 2016/17 Registered 
Providers

Performance management and 
monitoring

Food and Feed Plan 2017/18 Performance management and 
monitoring

Environmental Enforcement Policy Scrutiny of proposals
Waste Collection Policy Scrutiny of proposals
Adverse  Weather Plan Scrutiny of proposals
Property Investment Strategy Scrutiny of proposals
Vehicle Access Crossing Policy Scrutiny of proposals
Enforcement / Public Disorder Policy Scrutiny of proposals
GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes Minutes For information/discussion

22nd November 2017

Work Programme 2017/2018 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Directorate Plan Updates Neighbourhoods 
Directorate
Economy Directorate (incorporating RDA)

Performance management and 
monitoring

Performance Monitoring of Registered Annual Report - scrutinising 

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2017/2018

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Discretionary Crisis Fund and Local Welfare 
Provision Year End Report 2016/17

Performance monitoring and 
management

Directorate Plan Updates -
Neighbourhoods Directorate
Economy Directorate (incorporating RDA)

Performance management and 
monitoring

GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes For information/discussion

Page 37



Provider Partners performance
Housing Allocation Policy Scrutiny of proposals
GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool For information/discussion

24th January 2018

Work Programme 2017/2018 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals 

Link4Life – Six monthly update report Performance monitoring and 
management

Directorate Plan Updates -
Neighbourhoods Directorate 
Economy Directorate (incorporating RDA)

Performance monitoring and 
management

Performance Monitoring 2017/18 –
Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership

Performance management and 
monitoring

GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes for information/discussion

21st March 2018

Work Programme 2017/2018 Update
Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Discretionary Crisis Fund – six month 
update report

Performance monitoring and 
management

6 monthly Performance Monitoring 
including:
Rochdale Safer Communities Partnership

Performance management and 
monitoring

Directorate Plan Update:
Neigbourhoods Directorate
Economy Directorate (incorporating RDA)

Performance management and 
monitoring

Rochdale Boroughwide Housing Annual Performance Review 
GMCA/AGMA Scrutiny Pool Minutes for information/discussion

Other business to be scheduled

Rochdale Riverside funding
An Informal meeting to be convened as directed 
by the Chair in consultation with the Director of 
Economy.  

Draft Site Allocations Plan Scrutiny of proposals
Homelessness Prevention Scrutiny of proposals
Greater Manchester Combined 
Authority 

Understanding the role of scrutiny within the 
combined authority (to be considered jointly with 
Corporate and Health, Schools and Care 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees)

Page 38


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 RBH Performance Report
	Appendix 1 Promises
	Appendix 2 - RBH Commitments
	Appendix 3 - RBH Aspirations
	Appendix 4 - SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN ROCHDALE COUNCIL AND ROCHDALE BOROUGHWIDE HOUSING
	Appendix 5 - Home Improvment Programme (Position March 2017)
	Appendix 6 - RBH Achievements

	7 Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2017/18

